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RMB 9.18 billion

57.15 million people

China Foundation for Poverty Alleviation

had raised in funds and materials

had benefited poverty-stricken and 
disaster-stricken population

SINCE 2022 

CHINA FOUNDATION FOR  
POVERTY ALLEVIATION  

HAS BEEN RENAMED AS 

CHINA FOUNDATION FOR  
RURAL DEVELOPMEN

ABOUT US

OUR VISION

OUR VALUES
OUR MISSION

OUR SLOGAN

Founded in 1989, China Foundation for Poverty Alleviation 
is a nationwide nongovernmental charitable organization 
registered with the Ministry of Civil Affairs, PRC, supervised 
by the Ministry of Agriculture and Rural Affairs, PRC, and its 
daily operation is regulated by the National Rural Revitalization 
Administration.In September 2016, CFPA was one of the first 
to be certified by the Ministry of Civil Affairs as a charitable 
organization eligible for public fundraising.In 2022, with the 
approvals from the Ministry of Agriculture and Rural Affairs 
and the National Rural Revitalization Administration, China 
Foundation for Poverty Alleviation has been renamed as China 
Foundation for Rural Development.

Be the best trusted, the best expected, 
and the best respected international 
philanthropy platform

Service, Innovation, 
Transparency, TenacityFacilitate Rural Revitalization, 

Promote Common Prosperity

Persistence Brings Changes

By Dec. 31, 2021
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The year of 2021 was a splendid year that is destined to be recorded in 
the history. The Communist Party of China celebrated its centennial this 
year. China has achieved a comprehensive victory in poverty eradication 
and has completed the arduous task of eradicating abject poverty. 
The focus of work related to the issues of “Agriculture, Countryside 
and farmers” has historically shifted from poverty alleviation to rural 
revitalization in all dimensions. 2021 is the first year of China's “14th 
Five-Year Plan”, the first year of shifting its focus to consolidating and 
expanding the achievements of poverty alleviation and comprehensively 
promoting rural revitalization. In 2021, with the historical moment of the 
intersection of the “two centenary goals”, the CPC led and united the 
people of all ethnic groups to embark on a new journey of building a 
modern socialist country in an all-round way, and forge forward on the 
road of realizing the great rejuvenation of China.

Looking back, on March 13, 1989, under the care and leadership of the 
Central Committee of CPC, the State Council and the cordial care of the 
older generation of revolutionaries including Li Xiannian, Chen Junsheng, 
and Xiang Nan, China Foundation for Poverty Alleviation (CFPA) was 
officially established in Beijing. Over the past 33 years, we have always been 
adhering to the founding purpose of CFPA, keeping in mind the original 
intention, and fully implementing the general guidlines. Oriented to poverty-
stricken areas and focused on impoverished population, we have developed 
more than 100 influential, credible and practical poverty alleviation programs 
in fields of industry, education, health care and disaster relief. We have raised 
nearly RMB 9.2 billion in funds and supplies in total. They have benefited 
57.1 million person-times in poverty and disaster-stricken areas.

2021
Donation income

2021
Expenditure

We know quite well that we could not have made the achievements 
without the strong leadership and precise guidance of the Ministry 
of Agriculture and Rural Affairs, the National Administration for Rural 
Development, the Ministry of Civil Affairs and other relevant departments, 
as well as the enthusiastic participation and strong support of all sectors 
of society in the past 33 years. We hereby express our sincere thanks and 
great respect.

President of China Foundation 
For Rural Development

Zheng WenkaiRemarks by the President of 
China Foundation For Rural 
Development

CFPA came into being with the ushering of reform and opening up, and 
it complements the cause of poverty alleviation. The development history 
of CFPA over the past 30 more years is a mini-window of the history 
of China's reform and opening up, and is also the development history 
of China in poverty alleviation. The call for action in the “8-7 Poverty 
Alleviation Plan” at the CFPA's establishment, the “Outline of China's 
Poverty Alleviation & Rural Development (2001-2010)”, and the 18th 
National Congress of the CPC mobilized all CPC members and social 
forces of China to implement the policies for targeted poverty alleviation 
and elimination. There is also a call to adhere to the general goal of poverty 
alleviation and to focus on poverty alleviation for deeply impoverished 
regions. We have always followed the policies and strategies from the 
Central Committee of CPC and the State Council for poverty alleviation and 
rural development, and are committed to the cause of poverty reduction 
and building a moderately prosperous society in an all-round way.

Going from poverty alleviation to rural revitalization, we have thoroughly 
realized the new historic mission and responsibility, and have been 
actively responding to the call of the Central Committee of CPC and the 
State Council. Based on our own advantages, we have adjusted our 
work priority and development focus in a timely manner, further improved 
our institutional management, created new project model and content, 
scientifically integrated resources and channels, and dedicated ourselves 
to the great undertaking of rural revitalization.

To focus on key tasks and serve overall needs, 
we made every effort to develop practical 
programs for poverty alleviation

By virtue of innovation and tenacity, we strive to 
be the pioneer of poverty alleviation

RMB

1.34 billion

RMB

967 million

the whole process to ensure that the love and care from all participants are 
delievered as intended, so that practical results can be achieved.

Based on the overall work layout of national poverty alleviation and elimination, 
we have been adhering to the problem-oriented policy and addressing 
key constraint factors and outstanding problems in poverty alleviation 
for key regions and groups for more than 30 years. Through base-level 
inspection, we identified problems, developed plans, designed programs, 
prepared resources, and implemented with every effort. We directed 
further resources for poverty alleviation to impoverished areas, especially 
deeply-impoverished areas. We developed new programs tailored for 
the needs of poverty-stricken groups. The programs were accurately 
classified and efficiently implemented to effectively satisfy the diverse 
needs for poverty elimination and results consolidation. By virtue of years 
of experience in poverty alleviation at the front line, CFPA successively 
launched a series of large, effective, and influential philanthropy programs 
for poverty alleviation based on the needs of impoverished areas. These 
include poverty alleviation cooperation and training programs, Nutritious 
Meals Program, Panda Pack Program, Children Companion Plan, New 
Great Wall Scholarship Program, Backbone Project (Health Insurance 
for Poor Families' Labors), Emergency Aid, etc. Innovative projects have 
been implemented to help the poor increase their income sustainably. The 
programs include Poverty Alleviation Through E-Commerce, Bona Villa 
Program, Microfinance Program, and CFPA Pension Program.

For more than 30 years, we have been giving full play to the role of 
advantages and specialties of social organizations. We have been vigorously 
promoting the core values of socialism and the traditional virtues embedded 
in the Chinese Culture of helping the impoverished, the troubled, and 
each other. We dedicated ourselves to poverty reduction, spreading 
kindness, and fully spreading the power of love and kindness, which has 
expanded the social impact of poverty alleviation and elimination. We 
enthusiastically encouraged the donors and recipients to form a bond 
of mutual love and help, which has helped create vivid and touching 
stories of poverty alleviation in China. We organized a series of activities, 
such as “Annual Donors Conference” and “Seminars for Social Forces 
Participating in Poverty Alleviation” to expand the social impact of poverty 
alleviation and gather more resources to support comprehensive poverty 
eradication. We built open, transparent and convenient platforms and 
used new technologies and methods to expand channels for the public 
to participate in poverty alleviation. We launched a series of platforms, 
including One Yuan Donation Initiative, Great Walker, “Unite the Force 
for Good”, Great Walker 100, Monthly Giving Initiative. They have greatly 
increased the engagement level of the public in poverty eradication.For more than 30 years, we have been adhering to theme of implementing the 

major strategies and policies from the central committee of CPC for poverty 
alleviation, especially poverty elimination, and carried out work by focusing on 
key constraint factors of poverty alleviation concerning poverty-stricken areas 
and population. We made every effort to mobilize social forces to participate 
in poverty alleviation and elimination. We built platforms, gathered resources, 
entered remote mountains and visited villages, developed and carried out a 
series of poverty alleviation programs covering multiple sectors of industry 
including healthcare, education, disaster relief and targeted aid. We used new 
methods to explore solutions to poverty issues. 

From project planning and design to implementation, we have always insisted 
on a detailed, comprehensive, and all-round management style covering 

To consolidate achievements and boost rural 
revitalization, we embarked on a journey of 
transformation and upgrading

In 2021, in order to better adapt to the new situation, new tasks and new 
requirements of the work related to the issues of “Agriculture, Countryside 
and Farmers” (“Three-rural Work”), we centered our work around the Three-
rural Work and strived to make new progress. We have achieved an upgrade 
of the foundation and established new work policies. 
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the requirements of the National Administration for Rural Revitalization 
and the Ministry of Civil Affairs on social organizations participating in rural 
revitalization, and cooperate with relevant institutions to organize and carry 
out public welfare and charitable activities with distinctive characteristics. 
We will also continue to gather talents, resources and forces for rural 
revitalization, raise public awareness and participation.

We will strengthen our management in accordance with laws and 
regulations, while striving to perfect all internal management and 
operation rules, decision-making and implementation procedures. While 
strictly following the procedures, we will fully accept the supervision and 
management from upper level authorities and will strengthen internal 
control and audit mechanisms. We will always adhere to the policy of 
strict and frugal management, make full use of informatization and digital 
means, and effectively manage and utilize all public resources from 
fundraising to ensure the healthy development of CFPA.

Since 2022, CFPA has officially changed its name to the China Foundation 
For Rural Development  (CFRD) with the approval of the upper-level 
authorities. At the starting point of the new era and new challenges, 
we will take practical actions to contribute to the rural development 
and philanthropic undertaking with Chinese characteristics, and make 
unremitting efforts to realize rural revitalization in all aspects, facilitate high-
quality and efficient agriculture, and create a prosperous environment for 
farmers that is suitable for living and working.

talent nurturing, rural construction, rural social works and social mobilization, 
and also encourage more volunteers to participate in rural revitalization.

We will strive to make CFPA an advanced institution with high 
transparency, credibility and influence. Always adhering to the CPC's 
overall leadership over CFPA's work, we will give full play to the leading 
role of the branch of CPC commission of CFPA, persist in the “Two 
Establishments”, enhance the “Four Awareness”, strengthen “Four Self-
confidences”, implement “Two Maintenances”, and center on the ,main 
goal while serving overall needs.

We will develop an outstanding team that is affectionate, responsible, 
competent and disciplined.. Always persisting in the correct political 
direction, we will carry out in-depth study about Xi Jinping Thought on 
Socialism with Chinese Characteristics for a New Era, give full play to the 
pioneering role of CPC members, strengthen the leadership and drive 
of team building and improve the political acuteness of the team. We 
will always pursue the work style of “going to the base-level and front-
line, and being pragmatic and innovative”, adhere to the result-oriented 
policy, attach importance to role models. We will motivate individuals to 
accumulate morality in charity, promote positive energy of the society with 
actions, and cultivate a high-quality work team.

We will elaborately build effective cooperation platforms to facilitate 
participation of social forces in rural revitalization. We will strictly implement 

Firmly grasping the “One Transformation”: we should strive to achieve the 
transformation from fulfilling the lack of resources for impoverished regions 
and population during poverty eradication to upgrading these resources for 
underdeveloped regions and low-income groups during rural revitalization.

Embodying the “Three More Attention”: To meet the needs of 
underdeveloped areas and low-income groups, we should pay more 
attention to the social benefits and value of charitable programs, to the  
capacity building of beneficiaries, to the sustainable development of 
underdeveloped areas.

Highlighting five work priorities: We should focus on the five dimensions, 
specifically, industrial development, talent development, rural construction, 
rural social works, and social mobilization. Based on the advantages of 
CFPA, we will play the role of social resource innovation and experiment 
for the implementation of charity programs for rural revitalization, also the 
role of guidance of social participation in rural revitalization.

On the one hand, we actively optimized existing sustainable development 
programs, such as the Bona Villa Program and the Shanpin e-Commune 
Program, to further diversify the development dimensions and enrich their 
content. On the other hand, we worked hard on research and design, and 
launched new programs concerning rural development, including Rural 
Livable Environment Charity Program and Rural Elderly Mutual Assistance 
Program. We will also strive to explore new development fields.

Love without borders we sincerely assist with the 
depiction of China's poverty alleviation

Remain true to original aspiration, keep the mission 
firmly in mind, forge ahead on a new journey

Starting from supplies donation to the tsunami-stricken areas in Indonesia 
in 2005, we started our journey of international assistance and became 
the one of first batch of Chinese non-governmental organizations carrying 
out international charity programs. Since the 18th National Congress 
of the Communist Party of China, we have been actively responding to 
the Belt & Road Initiative, and upholding the philosophy of “ love without 
borders and heartfelt connectivity among people”. We have carried out 
international poverty reduction programs such as International Panda 
Pack program, Smiling Children program, and Solar Lantern Student Aid 
Program in 25 countries and regions, including Myanmar, Nepal, Ethiopia, 
Laos, Cambodia, Pakistan and Namibia. We have also cooperated 
with the United Nations Development Program (UNDP) on Disability Aid 
Poverty Reduction Training Program and International Vocational and 
Economic Development Program. We have strived to internationalize our 
work, and actively participated in high-end platform activities at home and 
abroad while accurately telling the stories of China's poverty reduction, 
demonstrating China’ s contributions to creating heartfelt connectivity 
among people, strengthening their base, and building a community with a 
shared future for mankind.

Remaining true to the original purpose of the establishment of CFPA, we 
will keep in mind the mission of CFPA and unite as one to accomplish new 
achievements with hard work in the new era of rural revitalization.

Adhering to the guidance of Xi Jinping Thought on Socialism with Chinese 
Characteristics for a New Era, especially the important instructions on 
work related to the issues of “Agriculture, Countryside and farmers” 
(“Three-rural Work”), we will make it our primary political responsibility 
and institutional mission to consolidate and expand the achievements of 
poverty alleviation and to give aid to rural revitalization, and implement 
the major decisions and policies by Central Committee of CPC on rural 
revitalization. Under the leadership of the Ministry of Agriculture and 
Rural Affairs, the National Administration for Rural Revitalization, and the 
Ministry of Civil Affairs, we will gather social forces and resources for the 
general objectives of consolidating and expanding the achievements of 
poverty alleviation to realize rural revitalization and to promote common 
prosperity. We will build CFPA into a veritable national team in charity and 
public welfare with Chinese characteristics, a major social participant in 
the development of “Three-rural Work” and rural revitalization, and an 
innovative practitioner who plays a key role in the third distribution.

Adhering to the guideline of “centering on the general objectives, attaching 
more importance to sustainability, highlighting demonstration and building 
large platforms”, we will strive to build a batch of rural revitalization 
demonstration villages in five years with priorities in industrial development, 
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In 2021, the focus of the work related to the issues of “Agriculture, Countryside and 

farmers” (“Three-rural Work”) is historically shifted from poverty alleviation to rural 

revitalization in all aspects. Based on our advantages, we adjusted our priority of work and 

focus of development in a timely manner, further improved institutional management, made 

great effort to develop new program model and content, and integrated resources and 

channels scientifically to fully participate in the great cause of rural revitalization.

In 2021, we transformed love from the public into nutritious meals to improve the health 

of children in underdeveloped areas, beautiful book bags for elementary school students, 

spacious school buildings, companion from child-care moms, convenient bridges over 

rivers, student aid, disaster relief, and programs promoting the development of rural industries, 

rural product sales, and rural labor healthcare, etc. We are gratified and proud of that. 

In 2021, pursuant to the service philosophy of helping beneficiaries, donors and partners, 

we continued to strengthen our professional capacity and credibility, facilitate IT application 

and donor services, accelerate the application of mobile internet, and strive to discover, 

gather, spread, and empower kindness. As always, we repay the support from all sectors 

of society with our enthusiasm, great efforts, dedicated service and efficient work, and 

unreservedly convey the love and trust of donors to the brave and determined people in 

underdeveloped areas.

OUR 2021

01
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With the development of cooperatives as the main focus and a benefit chain 

mechanism as the work priority, we introduced resources such as talents, 

technology, services and funds to help strengthen the connectivity of rural 

industries with the market to increase farmers' income. We implemented 

the strategy of example projects for demonstration and encouragement 

and achieved intended effects through example programs such as the 

Bona Villa Program and the agricultural income-generation project (Shanpin 

E-Commerce).Among the villages that have the necessary conditions, we 

have built them into comprehensive example villages in industry, talent, 

culture, and management by relying on industrial projects combined with 

other programs of CFPA.

LIVELIHOOD
DEVELOPMENT

China Foundation for Poverty Alleviation launched the Bona 

Villa Program in 2013 for villages in underdeveloped areas. In 

the villages that have necessary conditions for the program, 

we have gentrified traditional villages and old dwellings through 

overall planning and professional design. We have also 

maintained and improved the ecological environment in and 

around the villages to carry out rural tourism and promote the 

integrated development of rural primary, secondary, and tertiary 

industries. We have nurtured forerunners who can lead others 

in pursuing wealth and encouraged young people to return to 

the hometown for employment and entrepreneurship. By relying 

on the Two Village Committees and farmers’ cooperatives, we 

have conducted democratic consultations to establish a revenue 

distribution mechanism with the cooperatives at the center that 

shares benefits among the members. We have applied a points-

based systems for the development of rural civilization with an 

aim to build comprehensive rural revitalization demonstration 

villages with advanced industries, beautiful environment, vibrant 

culture, flexible mechanism and rich residents.

As of December 2021, the Bona Villa Program had received 

a cumulative donation of RMB 259 million, and has benefited 

125,000 person-times.

In 2021, the Bona Villa Program received donations of RMB 

52.36 million, expensed RMB 46.09 million, benefiting 20,000 

person-times.

As of December 2021, the Program had launched 32 projects 

in total, benefitting 30 villages in 28 counties (districts) across 

12 provinces (autonomous regions and municipality directly 

under the Central Government), including Hebei, Henan, Gansu, 

Shaanxi, Guizhou, Hunan, Sichuan, Jiangxi, Chongqing, Qinghai, 

Inner Mongolia, and Hubei.

2  Bona Villa Program, located at Chejiahe Village, Zhashui County, 
    Shangluo City, Shaanxi Province

1  Group photo of the training site for the butlers of Bona Villa Program

1

2

Bona Villa Program

Funds raised in 2021

RMB 52.36 million

Program expenditure in 2021

RMB 46.09 million

BONA VILLA PROGRAM

AGRICULTURAL INCOME-
GENERATION PROJECT 
(SHANPIN E-COMMERCE)
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TALENT
DEVELOPMENT

Funds raised in 2021

RMB 33.51
million

Program expenditure 
in 2021

RMB 32.87
million

1

2 3

China Foundation for Poverty Alleviation launched the Agricultural Income-Generation 

Project (Shanpin E-Commerce) in order to solve the problems of small production scale, 

scattered operation, short value chain and homogenous sales channels of rural industries 

in underdeveloped areas. Through cooperative incubation, quality control, brand building, 

and market promotion, the small farmer households in rural areas are encouraged to 

actively participate in production and development, which can increase income of farmers 

and village cooperatives by increasing market competitiveness and premium capacity of 

the product. It has helped consolidate and expand the achievements of poverty alleviation 

by building a rural industrial Agricultural Income-Generation service platform.

In 2021, donations of RMB 33.51 million were raised and RMB 32.87 million was 

spent for the program. By now, the Shanpin E-Commerce program has benefited 91 

cooperatives in 77 counties (cities, districts) in 19 provinces (autonomous regions and 

municipality directly under the Central Government), including Sichuan, Yunnan, Shaanxi, 

Xinjiang, etc. Among them, 9 cooperatives were awarded the title of “Provincial Farmer 

Cooperative Demonstration” and 3 cooperatives were awarded the title of “National 

Farmer Cooperative Demonstration”, 2 cooperatives were recognized by the Ministry of 

Agriculture and Rural Affairs as national examples of demonstration cooperatives. The 

program has benefitted 42,581 rural households. More than 100 categories of agricultural 

products have been developed and helped; 35 storage centers have been built in 14 

provinces; 327,346.9 acres of quality control management demonstration bases have 

been established; the number of cumulative online views have exceeded 2.5 billion; the 

number of consumers who participated in the program and gave support have exceeded 

2 million person-times.

2  The farmers greet a great harvest

3  Zigui farmers share September Red oranges
    (famous local orange variety)

1  The farmers from Asbestos and Loquat 
    Cooperative under Shanpin E-Commerce
    program return home after a good harvest

Diverse forms of training systems and courses for different groups 

are established and developed by gathering resources from 

universities,scientific research institutes and professional training 

institutions to expand channels for the growth of rural talents and 

improve their overall capacity. Talent development programs aim to 

cultivate farmer talents, local experts,inheritors and entrepreneurs in 

various forms such as new farmers training, village cadres training, 

and entrepreneurial and employment talents training.

YOUNG FARMER 
ENTREPRENEURSHIP 
DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM

FARMER LEADERSHIP 
DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM

Agricultural Income-Generation Project
(Shanpin E-Commerce)
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China Foundation for Poverty Alleviation launched the Young Farmer Entrepreneurship 

Development Program in 2019 to relieve the shortage of rural entrepreneurial talents in 

underdeveloped areas. The program aims to strengthen the management capabilities 

and market competitiveness of rural entrepreneurial leaders and promote rural talent 

nurturing and sustainable rural development by bringing together teachers from colleges 

and scientific research institutions through classroom teaching, on-site practical training, 

venture philanthropy investment, market support and other multi-dimensional and multi-

level entrepreneurial empowerment and cultivation system.

As of December 2021, the Program had benefited more than 20 counties (cities, districts) in 

10 provinces (municipality directly under the Central Government and autonomous regions). 

In 2021, the program carried out projects such as the new farmers training, cooperative 

incubation, and infrastructure construction and had raised funds of RMB 18.60 million. 

In 2021, 6 sessions of centralized training, 3 sessions of regional training, and more than 

10 sessions of community training were held, with a total of 844 person-times of trainees. 

Twelve normal executive cooperatives are distributed in 12 counties (cities, districts) across 

7 provinces (municipality directly under the Central Government and autonomous regions). 

The program has benefited 2,602 rural households, including 601 households with 

cooperative membership, totalling 8,591 person-times. Quality control management core 

bases under the Program occupying a total area of 3,430-mu (mu: Chinese unit of land 

measurement that is commonly 666.7 square metres) have been established.

1 2

3

In 2021, under the guidance of the Ministry of Agriculture and Rural Affairs, the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration 

Commission of the State Council, the National Administration for Rural Revitalization, the China Banking and Insurance Regulatory 

Commission and the China Securities Regulatory Commission, China Foundation for Poverty Alleviation organized social forces to help 

with Rural Revitalization Exchange Training Sessions. in conjunction with the Party School of the Central Committee of the CPC, the 

Securities Association of China, China Minsheng Bank, Dongxing Securities, China Orient Asset Management Co., Ltd., China State 

Railway Group and COFCO Group. The program aims to elevate the professional capacity of personnel of all units participating in rural 

revitalization program and agriculture-related cadres, strengthen the support of talents for rural revitalization, and effectively help advance 

rural revitalization in all dimensions. In 2021, a total of 8 Rural Revitalization Exchange Training Sessions were held with the aid of social 

forces. A total of 4,717 person-times of representatives of agriculture-related cadres from central state organs, financial institutions, 

enterprises and institutions participated in the training.

Funds raised in 2021

RMB 18.60
million

Number of trainees

844
person-times

Number of trainees in 2021

4,717
person-times

of trainees

2  2021 Cooperative Directors Capacity Development Training Seminar

2  On July 23, 2021, under the guidance 
    of the Social Assistance Department of the 
    National Administration for Rural Revitalization, 
    the first Social Force Aided Rural Revitalization 
    Exchange Training Session, jointly sponsored 
    by the China Foundation for Poverty 
    Alleviation and China Minsheng Bank and 
    organized by the Sichuan Mengding 
    Mountain Cooperative Development and 
    Training Institute, was held in Beijing.

3  Visit to Baiyuankang Ecological Agriculture for Field Research

3  On October 19, 2021, under the guidance 
    of the Assistance Office of the China 
    Securities Regulatory Commission and the 
    Social Assistance Department of the 
    National Administration for Rural 
    Revitalization, the Xingyuan Huimin farmer 
    cadre training session, jointly sponsored by 
    the China Foundation for Poverty Alleviation 
    and Dongxing Securities, was held in 
    Shenzhen Capital Market Institute.

1  On-site studying in the site of Inner Mongolia “Capable People Revitalize Countryside” 
    Vocational Skills Development Program

1  From December 14, 2021 to December 
    19, 2021, a special training session for 
    agriculture-related e-commerce and short 
    video entrepreneurs from the county under 
    the dedicated help of the Party School of 
    the Central Committee of the CPC (National 
    Academy of Governance) was held at the 
    Sichuan Mengding Mountain Cooperative 
    Development and Training Institute.

Young Farmer Entrepreneurship 
Development Program

Farmer Leadership Development Program

1

3

2
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To strengthen the weak links of rural construction, disaster 

prevention and mitigation, we have developed the programs 

to improve rural residents' convenience,safety and comfort 

by strengthening the disaster response capabilities of the 

residents in rural disaster-prone areas and creating better 

living environment and ecological environment.

China Foundation for Poverty Alleviation launched the Disaster 

Relief program in 2003 to provide assistance to disaster-stricken 

people and areas, reduce disaster losses, strengthen community 

resilience, help affected people overcome difficulties, rebuild 

homes and help build livable villages through disaster reduction 

and prevention advocacy, disaster preparation, emergency 

rescue, transitional resettlement, post-disaster recovery and 

reconstruction.

Since the establishment of the Disaster Relief program in 2003, 

a total of 316 disaster relief operations have been carried out 

(including 25 winter relief operations for vulnerable groups), 

with RMB 1.708 billion of expenditure for disaster relief funds 

and supplies. The program has directly benefited 7.038 million 

people in 31 provinces (autonomous regions and municipality 

directly under the Central Government) across China,

In 2021, the Disaster Relief program carried out 27 disaster 

relief operations, raised RMB 66.75 million in funds and supplies 

and spent RMB 44.16 million, benefiting 524,400 people in 15 

provinces (autonomous regions and municipality directly under 

the Central Government).

1

2

DISASTER RELIEF

HENAN FLOOD DISASTER RELIEF 
PROJECT

ACTIONS AGAINST COVID-19

DISASTER PREVENTION AND RISK 
REDUCTION

ECOLOGICAL AFFORESTATION 
PROGRAM

RURAL INFRASTRUCTURE 
BUILDING PROGRAM

RURAL 
CONSTRUCTION

Funds raised in 2021

RMB 66.75
million

Program expenditure 
in 2021

RMB 44.16
million

Disaster Relief

2  Sichuan Bazhong flood relief supplies distribution site in 2021

1  Chongqing Fengjie flood relief supplies distribution site in 2021
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After the natural disaster of torrential rain on July 20, 2021 in Henan, China Foundation 

for Poverty Alleviation fully implemented the important instructions of General Secretary 

Xi Jinping on flood control and disaster relief work, launched the disaster response 

plan immediately to carry out emergency rescue operation, making every effort to help 

the people in the disaster-stricken areas to restore production and life.

After its disaster response plan was started on July 20, 2021, China Foundation for 

Poverty Alleviation dispatched a total of 58 people in 3 groups to the disaster-stricken 

area, established the “China Foundation for Poverty Alleviation Henan Flood Relief 

Frontline Headquarters” in Gongyi City, Zhengzhou City, Henan Province, and set up 5 

centers including a rescue center, a feedback and dissemination center, a fundraising 

development center, a reconstruction planning center, and a logistics center. We set 

up seven front-line workstations in Hui County of Xinxiang City, Fengquan District of 

Xinxiang City, Gongyi City, Xingyang City, Luoyang City, Xinmi City and Hebi City to 

carry out front-line supplies reception and distribution, transfer of affected people, 

danger identification, disaster investigation, environment sanitization, hot meal supply, 

dredging, etc. As of December 20, 2021, the Henan flood relief operation initiated by 

China Foundation for Poverty Alleviation had received support and donation totaling 

RMB 428 million from 215 enterprises, 6 charity platforms, and 2.54 million people, 

benefiting 7 cities and 20 counties (cities, districts), including Zhengzhou, Xinxiang, 

Hebi, Luoyang, and Xuchang. At the same time, China Foundation for Poverty 

Alleviation, in conjunction with 13 humanitarian rescue network partners, mobilized 

30 rescue teams with a total of 267 members to carry out rescue missions with the 

help of rescue vehicles, rubber boats, underwater sonar and other water area rescue 

equipment. More than 2,200 people were transferred and rescued. In Henan Province, 

more than 220,000 portions of food supplies such as grain, flour, oil, dried noodles, 

and bottled water were distributed; more than 100,000 sets of emergency supplies 

such as humanitarian emergency boxes, folding beds, mats and quilts, rubber shoes, 

and feminine products were distributed; more than 7,000 packages of emergency 

equipment such as flashlights, mobile power supplies, generators, water purifiers, 

and fog machines were distributed for multiple resettlement sites to ensure basic 

living needs of the disaster-stricken people in multiple aspects. According to actual 

needs of the disaster-stricken areas to rebuild homes, we creatively designed the 

Home Restoration – Work-Relief Home Clean-Up Program which organizied villagers 

to carry out village clean-up and public services through labor subsidies, benefiting 

624 program villages in Henan Province. A total of 80 sets of excavators and loaders 

were donated by the Home Restoration - Equipment Aid Program; 3 sets of water 

purification equipment were installed for the disaster-stricken villages to ensure drinking 

water safety after the disaster; 6 hot meal supply sites were set up to provide lunch 

and dinner for the trapped people and emergency repair workers. A total of more 

than 107,300 local residents received our service. In order to prevent post-disaster 

pandemic, disinfection and pandemic prevention work were carried out in streets and 

communities, covering a disinfected area of 2,156,100 square meters.

According to actual needs of the disaster-stricken areas and the wishes of the 

donors, we carried out programs such as the bridge construction Project, Sunshine 

Runway, Clinics, and Farm House Subsidies to provide infrastructure support for 

the recovery of production and life of residents in the disaster-stricken areas; we 

carried out school disaster reduction classroom program, town/village disaster 

preparedness warehouse program and resilient village program to strengthen the 

disaster prevention and response capabilities of people in disaster-stricken areas.
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Considering insufficient pandemic prevention capacity, shortage 

of pandemic prevention and living supplies, and stress suffered 

by anti-pandemic personnel in the affected areas, China 

Foundation for Poverty Alleviation launched the Actions Against 

COVID-19 program in 2020. Through donation of funds and 

supplies to anti-pandemic personnel and the people affected 

by the pandemic, CFPA provided supplies and psychological 

intervention, supported the anti-pandemic personnel in their 

work, and helped the affected people overcome the difficulties 

and return to normal production and life.

In 2021, under the guidance of the Ministry of Civil Affairs, the 

Ministry of Agriculture and Rural Affairs and the National Health 

Commission, and according to the wishes of the donors and the 

actual situation of local pandemic prevention, we provided funds 

assistance to Shiyan City, Hubei Province and Xilin Gole League, 

Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region for purchase of protective 

clothing, isolation gowns, medical masks, testing reagents 

and other anti-pandemic supplies, benefiting 28 hospitals and 

4 CDCs in 6 counties (cities and districts). In 2021, we raised 

funds and supplies with a value of RMB 990,700 and spent RMB 

9,628,500 for the program, directly benefiting 424,700 people.

Two rescue teams were dispatched to Xinle City, Hebei Province 

to carry out pandemic prevention and disinfection work. The 

disinfected area reached about 1.06 million square meters. 

Through our partners in Shijiazhuang, we distributed 500 

COVID-19 prevention boxes to front-line social workers and 

volunteers and bought 500 copies of COVID-19 prevention 

insurance for them.

We dispatched teams to the front line of the COVID-19 

pandemic prevention and control in Tonghua, Jilin Province, 

and established a humanitarian aid Jilin Province pandemic 

prevention and control command center in Changchun City. 

By supporting local institutions, we gave 700 sets of bedding, 

3,000 protective masks, 9,232 sets of protective clothing, 5 tons 

of disinfectant, 14,942 pairs of cotton gloves, 195,000 pairs 

of medical examination gloves, 200,000 disposable medical 

surgical masks and other COVID-19 pandemic prevention 

supplies benefiting 28 communities including Qianjin Community, 

Xiguan Community and Xichang Community in Tonghua 

City, and 2 hospitals: Tonghua Central Hospital and Tonghua 

Traditional Chinese Medicine Hospital.
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Funds raised in 2021

RMB 428
million

Number of donors

2.54
million

2  Humanitarian rescue emergency 
    boxes distribution site

1  Restoration of Homeland Operation—Post-disaster 
    Work-Relief Home Clean-Up Program site

Henan Flood Disaster Relief Project Actions Against COVID-19

Funds raised in 2021

RMB 990,700
Program expenditure in 2021

RMB 9.63 million

2  Volunteer supplies distribution site in Shijiazhuang City, Hebei Province

3  Relief supplies shipment site in Tonghua City, Jilin Province

1  On-site disinfection in Xinle City,Hebei Province
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China Foundation for Poverty Alleviation launched the Ecological Afforestation Program 

in 2018. With the financial aid of the Ant Group Ant Forest Program and other donating 

companies, the Program aims to plant suitable trees for ecologically fragile areas and 

improve the vegetation ecology. It helps increase income for the low-income groups 

by providing them jobs of caring for the vegetation, thus contributing to the sustainable 

development of rural ecology.

As of 2021, the Ecological Afforestation Program had raised donations of RMB 100 

million, benefiting 16 counties (cities, districts) and 11 cities of 3 provinces (autonomous 

regions and municipality directly under the Central Government) , including Inner 

Mongolia, Gansu and Shanxi. 222,991 mu (mu: Chinese unit of land measurement that 

is commonly 666.7 square metres)  of vegetation has been planted (afforestation area), 

cumulatively benefiting 143,000 people and offering opportunities for 7,362 people to 

increase income.

In 2021, the Ecological Afforestation Program raised donations of RMB 60.20 million, and 

spent RMB 47.28 million in funds and supplies. The program benefited 87,590 people in 

12 counties (cities, districts) and 8 cities of 2 provinces, including Gansu and Shanxi.

Disaster Prevention and Risk Reduction Ecological Afforestation Program

China Foundation for Poverty Alleviation launched the Disaster 

Prevention and Risk Reduction program in 2014. The program aims 

to raise public awareness on disaster reduction and prevention and 

enhance self-rescue and assistance capabilities through activities. 

It also aims to improve rural disaster response capabilities and 

development resilience by building disaster relief supply reserves, so 

as to contribute to the construction of livable countryside.

For disaster reduction advocacy, we issued the Research Report 

on Public Awareness of Disaster Prevention and Reduction 

in China, and the Research Report on Status Quo of Disaster 

Prevention and Reduction Education for Primary-school students 

in China, and published the Guidelines for Disaster Prevention and 

Reduction Education for Primary-school students; we carried out 

disaster reduction and prevention advocacy programs such as 

“SAY NO to disasters”, school disaster reduction classroom, college 

student disaster reduction officer, No. 1 village disaster responder. 

For disaster prevention and preparedness, according to the 

characteristics of different disasters in different stages and different 

relief needs, we have established a multi-variety, diffuse and fast-
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arriving supplies disaster preparedness system, and a nationwide 

disaster relief partner system—the Humanitarian Aid Network, and 

developed aid plans for different needs – Program Pool.

In 2021, the Disaster Prevention and Risk Reduction Program 

carried out “SAY NO to Disasters”—512 National Disaster 

Reduction and Prevention Community Charity Activity, School 

Disaster Reduction Classroom program, and “Smart Classroom” 

program. We raised funds and supplies with a value of RMB 

778,700, spent RMB 1.41 million, benefiting 42,700 people in 

8 counties (cities, districts) of 5 provinces (autonomous regions 

and municipality directly under the Central Government).
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2  School Disaster Reduction Classroom

2  Local beneficiary farmers participate
    in planting under the program

3  SAY No to Disaster activity

4  Humanitarian Aid Network Conference

1  Launch “College Student Disaster Reduction Officer Charity Program”

1  Saxaul Planting Area under the program

Funds raised in 2021

RMB 778,700
Program expenditure in 2021

RMB 1.41 million

Funds raised in 2021

RMB 60.20
million

Program expenditure 
in 2021

RMB 47.28
million
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China Foundation for Poverty Alleviation launched the Rural 

Infrastructure Building Program in 2017. With financial aid, the program 

aims to support the construction of small and medium-sized public 

facilities such as bridges, roads, school buildings, and sanitation 

facilities in villages in underdeveloped areas, so as to improve local 

public facilities and offer convenience for the production and daily life of 

local residents, contributing to the construction of livable villages.

In 2021, the program raised donations of RMB 7.39 million, and 

spent RMB 18.42 million, benefiting 29 counties (cities, districts) in 

13 provinces (municipality directly under the Central Government 

and autonomous regions). It also benefited 171,500 people by 

assisting with the construction of 18 convenience bridges, Sunshine 

Runways in 15 schools, student dormitories of 10 schools and high 

school clinics of 11 schools.
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Rural Infrastructure Building Program

2  Completion of Convenience Bridge in Mozhugongka County

3  The dormitory building (under the Nest Building Program) of the primary 
    school of Anzi Town, Pengshui County has been put into use.

1  The students of Yangzhuangke Central School at interesting sports meeting

Funds raised in 2021

RMB 7.39 million

Program expenditure in 2021

RMB 18,42 million

Focusing on basic public services for the people's livelihood such as rural education, medical care, and elderly care, 

we carry out livelihood security programs such as those involving child care, education, health, and elderly care.

DOMESTIC PANDA PACK 
PROJECT

MOVING FORWARD 
PROGRAM

NEW GREAT WALL 
SCHOLARSHIP PROGRAM 
FOR UNDERGRADUATE 
STUDENTS

NEW GREAT WALL 
SCHOLARSHIP PROGRAM 
FOR HIGH-SCHOOL 
STUDENTS

RURAL SOCIAL 
WELFARE

NEW GREAT WALL 
VOCATIONAL EDUCATION 
EMPOWERMENT PROJECT

EMPOWERING CHILDREN, 
ENLIGHTENING THE FUTURE

RURAL EDUCATION 
DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM

NUTRITIOUS MEALS 
PROGRAM

CHILDREN COMPANION 
PLAN

BACKBONE PROJECT 
(HEALTH INSURANCE FOR 
POOR FAMILIES’ LABORS)

CRITICAL ILLNESS RELIEF 
PROJECT

RURAL HEALTHCARE 
PROGRAM

RURAL DOCTOR TRAINING 
PROGRAM
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In 2009, China Foundation for Poverty Alleviation, China Post 

Group Corporation and The Movie Channel jointly launched 

the Domestic Panda Pack Project. The project aims to realize 

children's childhood dreams and improve their learning and living 

conditions by donating the packs and sending one-to-one care 

to children.

As of December 31, 2021, the Domestic Panda Pack Project 

had received social donations of RMB 816 million from more than 

2.32 million caring individuals and 170,000 caring companies as 

well as more than 10 billion online donations. The project have 

distributed a total of 6,781,500 Student Art Packs, 726,600 

Student Warm Packs, 32,000 Student Life Packs, and 31,000 

School Packs, benefiting 7,574,800 students of 34,593 schools 

in 936 counties of 31 provinces, as well as 6,549 families.

In 2021, the project raised donations of RMB 31.32 million, 

spent RMB 55.04 million, and cumulatively distributed a total of 

326,546 Student Art Packs and 92,854 Student Warm Packs, 

benefiting 419,400 pupils of 1,822 schools in 94 counties of 23 

provinces.
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China Foundation for Poverty Alleviation launched the Moving Forward Program in 2014. 

The program aims to help rural students develop in all dimensions by introducing core 

literacy courses and building study zones. It also aims to stimulate internal motivation and 

innovation of principals and teachers through training, exchange workshops and financail 

support. Taking county as a unit, the program continues to be carried out in rural primary 

schools to promote the overall improvement of rural education.

As of December 31, 2021, the program had received donations of RMB 139 million, 

and the number of direct beneficiaries had reached 141,800 people, including 136,778 

rural students (including transfer and graduated students) and 5,007 rural teachers of 

456 schools in 11 counties (cities, districts) of 5 provinces, including Guizhou, Yunnan, 

Sichuan, Guangxi, and Henan Province.

In 2021, the Program raised donations of RMB 42.23 million, spent RMB 39.15 million, 

benefiting 112,868 rural students (including transfer and graduated students) and 4,709 

rural teachers of 428 schools in 8 counties of 3 provinces, including Guizhou, Yunnan 

and Henan.
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Domestic Panda Pack Project Moving Forward Program

2  A student of Jinxi Primary School in Pingtou Town, Songtao County  
    shows her stationery in the Panda Pack

2  Children smile happily when they receive the 
    Moving Forward Bags

3  A beneficiary student of Primary School (with full six grades) in Shabahe 
    Township, Songtao County shows her hug doll

1  The students of Hengfeng County Qingban Primary School receive 
    Panda Packs

1  Beneficiaries and monthly doners are taking a 
    social emotional class

Funds raised in 2021

RMB 31.32 million

Program expenditure in 2021

RMB 55.04 million

Funds raised in 2021

RMB 42.23
million

Program expenditure 
in 2021

RMB 39.15
million
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China Foundation for Poverty Alleviation launched the New Great 

Wall Scholarship Program for Undergraduate Students in 2002. 

The program aims to help college students from families with 

financial stress difficulties complete their college studies and 

improve their comprehensive abilities through financial aid and 

talent support activities. It jointly builds the Great Wall of Talents 

in the new era with college students by guiding them to actively 

give back to the society and pass on the social care.

As of December 31, 2021, the program had received donations 

of RMB 316.7501 million, benefiting 146,236 students in more 

than 600 colleges and universities in 31 provinces. At the same 

time, the New Great Wall Self-improvement Societies were 

established in 104 universities to provide a platform for students 

to become talents.

1

32

China Foundation for Poverty Alleviation launched the New 

Great Wall Scholarship Program for High-School Students in 

2007. The program aims to help students from families with 

financial difficulties complete their studies and improve their 

comprehensive abilities through financial aid coupled with talent 

management services.

As of December 31, 2021, the program had received donations 

of RMB 442.6126 million, and spent RMB 372.8165 million, 

directly benefiting 190,000 people, including 69,400 students 

from families with financial difficulties who have received 

scholarships and talent services. The program have benefited 

557 high schools in 426 counties (cities, districts) of 28 

provinces.

In 2021, the Program raised donations of RMB 92.86 million, 

spent RMB 66.33 million, benefiting 277 counties of 23 

provinces. A total of 617 scholarship classes were established for 

high school students in 329 high schools, providing scholarships 

and talent services for 35,843 students from families with 

financial difficulties.
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New Great Wall Scholarship Program 
for Undergraduate Students

New Great Wall Scholarship Program 
for High-School Students

2  Participants of student exchange program with Gansu University 
    of Chinese Medicine

2  The opening ceremony of the Moving Forward Scholarship Class for 
    High-School Students in Xunwu Middle School, Jiangxi Province

3  letter of thanks from beneficiary students of Meng Lihong Scholarship Funds

3  Group photo of Alipay Philanthropicy Scholarship Class in Jinping 
    No. 1 Middle School in Yunnan Province

1  Group photo of the interviewed students

1  China National Petroleum Corporation launched Xuhang program for 
    College Admission Examination Service Station activity

Funds raised in 2021

RMB 11.84 million

Program expenditure in 2021

RMB 10.49 million

Funds raised in 2021

RMB 92.86 million

Program expenditure in 2021

RMB 66.33 million

In 2021, the Program raised donations of RMB 11.84 million, 

spent RMB 10.49 million, directly benefiting 3,379 people from 

147 universities and 15 counties of 29 provinces across the 

country.



CHINA FOUNDATION FOR RURAL DEVELOPMENT ANNUAL REPORT 2021

24 25

CHINA FOUNDATION FOR RURAL DEVELOPMENT ANNUAL REPORT 2021

The China Foundation for Poverty Alleviation launched the New Great Wall Vocational 

Education Empowerment Project in 2021. The program aims to help students complete 

studies and improve their career skills by providing financial aid, developing high-quality 

vocational courses, providing career guidance, and internship opportunities and other 

actions.

In 2021, the program raised donations of RMB 16.3356 million (including RMB 3 million 

of donations transferred from 2020), and spent RMB 4.3349 million, providing financial 

aid and empowerment training for 1,250 vocational education students of 26 secondary 

and higher vocational colleges in 5 provinces.
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To promote comprehensive quality development of rural children, 

China Foundation for Poverty Alleviation launched the Empowering 

Children, Enlightening the Future program in 2021. The program 

aims to improve children's literacy level and help rural children 

develop in all dimensions through children companion program, 

rural digital classroom programs as well as digital, aesthetic 

education coupled with reading and other content.

The program, through cooperation with Yum China and Lile 

Education, has the purpose of popularization of programming 

education in rural schools, elevating the digital capabilities of 

the schools, broadening the horizons of rural primary-school 

students through “Internet + AI education popularization”, 

computer donation, teacher empowerment, and programming 

classes. It offers opportunity for rural children to develop in all 

dimensions and has benefited about 250 schools in 5 provinces.

We conjunction with Lego Group, offered donated Lego toy kits 

to rural children, especially left-behind and vulnerable children, 

through the “Build to Give” activity. Thus, the children have 

opportunities to have a creative play experience, enabling them 

to learn and grow through play experiences. By now, LEGO 

Group has donated more than 267,000 LEGO toy kits, benefiting 

nearly 350,000 children in 25 counties (cities, districts) of 9 

provinces (municipality directly under the Central Government 

and autonomous regions) including Yunnan, Guizhou, Hubei, etc.

We cooperate with Beijing One Way Street Foundation to carry 

out aesthetics education for children in rural areas so as to 

improve children's literacy level.
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New Great Wall Vocational Education 
Empowerment Project

Empowering Children, Enlightening 
the Future

2  The opening ceremony of the Samsung 
    (China) Semiconductor Philanthropic 
    Career Empowerment Project

2  Students of Daqiaowan Primary School in Xinhua County, Hunan 
    Province, are taking a programming class

1  The opening ceremony of the Volkswagen Group 
    China Economic Empowerment Better Life Project

1  Official launch of rural Digital Classroom

3  Kids immerse themselves in a world of LEGO toy kits

Funds raised in 2021

RMB 16.34
million

Program expenditure 
in 2021

RMB 4.34
million
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China Foundation for Poverty Alleviation launched the Nutritious Meals Program in 2008. 

The program aims to improve school meal quality, help children increase nutrition intake, 

and continue to improve children's health status. It contributes to rural revitalization 

through Nutritious Meals, Love Kitchen, nutrition knowledge education and material aid 

and other aid methods.

As of December 31, 2021, the program had raised funds and supplies with a value of 

RMB 482 million, benefiting 141 counties (cities, districts) of 74 cities (prefectures) in 18 

provinces (autonomous regions and municipality directly under the Central Government), 

including Yunnan, Guizhou, Hebei, Xinjiang, Anhui, etc. It has provided about 72.71 

million servings of Nutritious Meals and equipped 3,074 schools with Love Kitchen 

equipment, benefiting more than 1.515 million students.

In 2021, the program raised funds and supplies with a value of RMB 62.8036 million and 

spent RMB 51.3303 million (The cumulative program income and expenditure include 

the Love Kitchens of COVID-19 program and flood program; the project income and 

expenditure of current year do not include the Love Kitchens of COVID-19 program and 

flood program), benefiting 41 counties (cities and districts) of 28 cities (prefectures) of 11 

provinces (autonomous regions and municipality directly under the Central Government), 

including Yunnan, Guizhou, etc. The program provided about 9.6 million servings of 

Nutritious Meals and equipped 386 schools with Love Kitchen equipment, benefiting 

181,000 people (person-times).
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China Foundation for Poverty Alleviation launched the Rural 

Education Development Program in 2017. The program aims 

to improve rural educational resources and environment, and 

facilitate continuous improvement of rural education level by 

offering support for rural schools, teacher teams, students and 

families through construction of school infrastructure, capacity 

development of and financial aid to rural teachers and students.

As of December 31, 2021, the program had raised donations 

of RMB 126.7245 million, cumulatively benefiting 889,000 

people (person-times). In 2021, the program continued to 

focus on improving the level of rural education as the primary 

objective, and carried out small and medium-sized programs 

such as scholarship programs and construction of schools and 

supporting facilities. At the same time, China Southern Power 

Grid (CSG) and China Foundation for Poverty Alleviation jointly 

launched the CSG Zhixing Bookstore program with a planned 

donation of RMB 150 million to build no less than 300 CSG 

Zhixing Bookstores from 2021 to 2025 in five provinces (districts), 

including Yunnan, Guizhou, Guangxi, Guangdong and Hainan. 

The program aims to arouse students’ interest in reading, 

expand the scope of reading, and elevate the quality of reading 

by creating a friendly reading environment, updating books, and 

strengthening teachers’ leading ability in reading, so as to help 

rural education revitalize through reading.

In 2021, the Rural Education Development Program raised 

donations of RMB 47.15 million, and spent RMB 22.1119 

million in funds and supplies, directly benefiting 466,700 people 

(person-times) in 40 counties (cities and districts) of 15 provinces 

(autonomous regions and municipality directly under the Central 

Government).

1 2

Rural Education Development Program Nutritious Meals Program

2  The Team of Huaxizi Miao Girls Support Program visits student’s classroom

2  A student of the beneficiary school is eating 
    delicious meal, smiling happily

3  In the Love Kitchen, the cook aunt is 
    preparing lunch for the children

4  In 2021, Nutritious Meals Program is granted 
    award at the China Internet Charity Summit

1  The achievements of the CSG Zhixing Bookstore

1  A serving of milk and an egg, providing 
    immediate and effective nutrition supplements 
    for rural children

Funds raised in 2021

RMB 47.15 million

Program expenditure in 2021

RMB 22.11 million

Funds raised in 2021

RMB 62.80
million

Program expenditure 
in 2021

RMB 51.33
million
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In order to solve the problem of returning to poverty due to illness or accident in 

underdeveloped areas and under the guidance of the National Administration for Rural 

Revitalization (formerly the Poverty Alleviation Office of the State Council) and the National 

Health Commission, China Foundation for Poverty Alleviation, Alibaba Philanthropy, 

Alipay Philanthropy and Ant Financial Service Insurance Platform jointly launched the 

Backbone Project (Health Insurance for Poor Families’ Labors) in 2017. The program 

aims to provide comprehensive health care and accident insurance for low-income 

groups through special public welfare insurance to reduce the occurrence of returning to 

poverty due to illness or accident. In 2021, the Backbone Project (Health Insurance for 

Poor Families’ Labors) was improved and upgraded according to the guidance of experts 

and various sectors of society. It will continue to provide comprehensive illness–specific 

or accident-specific public welfare insurance for low-income groups aged 18-60. The 

program has been granted the 11th “China Charity Award”.

As of December 31, 2021, the program had raised funds and supplies with a value of around 

RMB 370 million in total, benefiting more than 13.35 million of low-income population in 100 

counties (cities, districts) of 12 provinces (autonomous regions and municipality directly under 

the Central Government), including Yunnan, Guizhou, Shaanxi, etc. A total of 191,800 claims 

under the program were settled, with a cumulative settlement amount of RMB 290 million, 

effectively reducing the hospitalization burden of low-income population.

In 2021, the program raised funds and supplies with a value of RMB 30.48 million, and 

spent RMB 34.03 million, providing health care for more than 1.96 million people (person-

times) in 32 counties (cities and districts) of 6 provinces (autonomous regions and 

municipality directly under the Central Government).

In 2015, China Foundation for Poverty Alleviation launched the Children Companion 

Plan. Through training of rural women, we carried out the care and protection program 

for rural children in the form of “one person, one family, and one bond”. A village-level 

guardianship network for left-behind and vulnerable children has been established with 

Children Companion Mother as the focus, Children Companion Home as the platform, 

and the County-Level Horizontal Linkage Mechanism as the guarantee. The program 

aims to ensure that child welfare services are delivered to the last mile. In 2018, the 

Children Companion Plan became the Alibaba charity strategic cooperation project.

As of December 31, 2021, the program had raised funds and supplies with a value of 

RMB 145 million, in addition to local supporting funds of RMB 26.3135 million. Through 

joint efforts of the Sichuan Provincial Committee of the Communist Youth League, the 

Department of Civil Affairs of Guizhou Province, the Jiangxi Charity Federation, the 

Department of Civil Affairs of Yunnan Province, the Department of Civil Affairs of Hubei 

Province, the Anhui Jianghuai Charity Foundation and the Department of Civil Affairs of 

Shaanxi Province, the “Children Companion Plan” has been carried out in 1,379 villages 

of 106 counties in 10 provinces, benefiting nearly 750,000 children. The project has been 

appreciated and affirmed by local government, partners, children and parents.

In 2021, the program raised funds and supplies with a value of RMB 37.28 million and 

spent 38.58 million, benefiting 1,135 villages of 88 counties in 10 provinces, including 

Guizhou, Jiangxi, Yunnan, Hubei, Anhui, Shaanxi, Sichuan, Shanxi, Hebei and Henan. 

It collected and solved 131,700 cases of children's welfare security needs, organized 

100,800 Child Companion Home activities. 718,900 children (person-times) and 98,700 

parents (person-times) participated in the activities. The Plan carried out 29 sessions of 

Children Companion Mother training and guidance, and a total of 1,701 people (person-

times) participated in the training.
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Children Companion Plan
Backbone Project 
(Health Insurance for Poor Families’ Labors)

2  The arrival of Children Companion Mother gives left-behind children warm companionship

2  The project team visits and interviews the 
    project beneficiary

3  Children Companion Home is a haven for children

3  A beneficiary of Shidian County, Yunnan Province

1  Training for Children Companion Mother for better children service

1  A beneficiary of Xunyi County, Shaanxi Province

Funds raised in 2021

RMB 37.28
million

Program expenditure 
in 2021

RMB 38.58
million

Funds raised in 2021

RMB 30.48
million

Program expenditure 
in 2021

RMB 34.03
million
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By providing medical aid, equipment & facilities and material 

assistance for, and giving training to rural medical personnel 

in underdeveloped areas, the Rural Healthcare Program has 

improved the level of medical services in underdeveloped areas 

and elevated the health level of local residents.

Aiming to reduce mother and infant mortality rate and improve 

the protection of life and health of mothers and infants in 

underdeveloped areas, the Mother and Infant Safety Program 

has successively launched initiatives such as the Mother and 

Infant Safety 120 Days Initiative, the See Brightness Initiative, the 

Critical Illness Program, etc. From January 1, 2000 to December 

31, 2021, both the received donations and expenditure of the 

Mother and Infant Safety Program have exceeded RMB 167 

million. The program benefited 792,000 people in 27 counties 

(cities, districts) of 11 provinces (municipality directly under 

the Central Government and autonomous regions), including 

Yunnan, Chongqing, Fujian, Ningxia, Anhui, Sichuan, Shanxi, 

Hebei, Hunan, Liaoning and Beijing.

In 2021, the Mother and Infant Safety Program benefited 21,000 

people(times) in 5 counties of 4 provinces (autonomous regions 

and municipality directly under the Central Government), including 

Yunnan, Chongqing, Fujian and Ningxia. Furthermore, 160 

people received Hospitalization & Delivery Subsidies For Pregnant 

Women and 21,000 children (person-times) received subsidies 

for vision screening, correction, spectacles and surgery.

Mother and Infant Safety Program

In 2021, the income of the Poverty-Stricken Farmers Aid 

Program was RMB 1.0127 million, and the expenditure was 

RMB 951,300. The program benefited 88 counties (cities, 

districts) of 13 provinces, including Gansu, Guizhou, Hebei, 

etc., with a total of 442 beneficiaries. In addition to financially 

supporting these families, the program gives them confidence to 

face life in the future.

Poverty-Stricken Farmers Aid Program

In 2021, Health Aid Program had a revenue of RMB 15 million, 

and expended RMB 10.8 million, benefiting 311,200 people from 

3 counties of Gansu Province.

Health Aid Program

1
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China Foundation for Poverty Alleviation launched the Critical 

Illness Relief Project in 2019. By providing medical and 

rehabilitation subsidies, living allowances and other comprehensive 

relief funds for low-income groups in underdeveloped areas, 

the program helps relieve the beneficiaries’ pressure of seeking 

medical care and enhance their confidence in life, thus reducing 

county-level incidence of return to poverty due to illness.

As of December 31, 2021, the program had raised funds and 

supplies with a value of RMB 22.8418 million, benefiting 15 

counties of 5 provinces, including Yunnan, Guizhou, Sichuan, 

Hubei and Shaanxi, and providing comprehensive fund support 

such as medical treatment, rehabilitation subsidies, and living 

allowances for 1,981 seriously ill villagers.

In 2021, the program raised donations of RMB 5.24 million and 

spent RMB 14.53 million, benefiting 11 counties of 5 provinces, 

including Yunnan, Guizhou, Sichuan, Hubei and Shaanxi. It 

also provided comprehensive fund support such as medical 

treatment, rehabilitation subsidies, and living allowances for 1,877 

seriously ill villagers.
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Critical Illness Relief Project Rural Healthcare Program

Funds raised in 2021

RMB 5.24 million

Program expenditure in 2021

RMB 14.53 million

1  Program staff visits the home of a program beneficiary in 
     Guangnan County, Yunnan Province

1  See Brightness program conducts primary vision screening for children

2  Program staff visits the home of a program beneficiary in 
    Lushui City, Yunnan Province

2  Program staff visit the beneficiaries of the Mother and Infant Safety Program

3  Program staff visits the home of a program beneficiary in  
    Lanping County, Yunnan Province

3  Bai Yunlong, one of the poverty-stricken farmer beneficiaries
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The China Foundation for Poverty Alleviation launched the Rural Angel Project in 

2020. By providing medical service tool kits and empowerment training for rural 

doctors in underdeveloped areas, the program will help gradually improve the 

medical equipment for rural doctors in underdeveloped areas. It will also support 

the capacity building of rural doctors, improve the level of rural medical services, 

and provide more solid health protection for rural residents.

By the end of 2021, the program had raised a total of RMB 5.7995 million in 

donations, with a total of 2,765 beneficiaries (person-times), providing capacity 

building and angel patrol package support for 7 counties (cities, districts) in 

4 provinces (autonomous regions and municipality directly under the Central 

Government).

In 2021, the project raised funds of 1.64 million and spent 1.23 million, benefiting 

630 people (person-times) in 3 provinces (municipality directly under the Central 

Government) including Chongqing, Shanxi and Sichuan.

1
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Rural Doctor Training Program

Funds raised in 2021

RMB 1.64
million

Program expenditure 
in 2021

RMB  1.23
million

1  A rural doctor under the Rural Doctor Training 
    Program is measuring blood pressure for a villager in 
    the villager’s house

2  A rural doctor under the Rural Doctor Training 
    Program is walking on the road to a patient’s home

We carried out organizational cultivation and social advocacy, actively built platforms, expanded channels, played 

the role of bridge and link, connected social organizations, experts, scholars, enterprises and the public, and made 

great efforts to create atmosphere for social forces to participate in rural revitalization.

INTERNET-BASED 
PHILANTHROPY

PROMOTING 
PHILANTHROPIC 
PARTICIPATION BY 
BOOSTING CONSUMPTION

MONTHLY GIVING 
INITIATIVE

GREAT WALKER

ONE YUAN DONATION

SOCIAL 
MOBILIZATION

UNITE THE FORCE FOR 
GOOD FUNDRAISING 
ACTIVITY 

“THE LOVE WITHOUT 
BORDERS” INTERNATIONAL 
FUNDRAISING EVENT

ACTIONS OF FOREIGN-
FUNDED ENTERPRISES FOR 
RURAL REVITALIZATION

RUNNING WATER 
INITIATIVE 

NPO COOPERATION 
PROJECTS

“PHILANTHROPY FOR 
EVERYONE” ONLINE 
FUNDRAISING PLATFORM

CHARITY FUTURE-YOUTH 
CAPACITY BUILDING

SOCIAL ENTERPRISE 
INNOVATION
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In 2021, the China Foundation for Poverty Alleviation raised RMB 123 million through 

Alibaba Philanthropy Baby and RMB 11.9447 million through online philanthropy stores. 

The donations supported a number of charity programs such as the Domestic (International) 

Panda Pack program, the Backbone Project (Health Insurance for Poor Families’ Labors), 

the Children Companion Plan, the New Future -High School Students Program, the Smiling 

Children Program and the joint fundraising activities of social organizations. In 2021, China 

Foundation for Poverty Alleviation became one of the first batch of rotating institutions of 

Alibaba XIN Yibai, which will help with development of the industry through joint contribution.

During the 95 Charity Week in 2021, the platform held the live broadcast night event with 

theme of “Love The Land, Be Philanthropic” to contribute to rural revitalization. We invited 

celebrities Yao Chen and Papi jiang to join the live broadcast room to introduce the New 

Future -High School Students Program and the Children Companion Plan, which helped with 

the promotion of the program by advocating for caring netizens to participate.

In 2021, China Foundation for Poverty Alleviation and Tencent jointly carried out the “Magic Street 

for Spring Festival Commodities”, “Post Love 320 Event”, “520 Do Good for Love”, “Hungry 

24 Smiling Children”, and “Running Water Initiative Charity Day Joint Fundraising Action” and 

many other themed fundraising activities, raising RMB 109 million through Tencent platform. 

Tencent Foundation and China Foundation for Poverty Alleviation have reached agreements on 

cooperation for a number of construction programs based on social needs. The Warm Home 

Program provides diverse forms of support such as Warm Packs and Pandemic Prevention 

Packs for front-line volunteers and troubled families. The Starlight Library Program aims to solve 

the issue of primary-school students lagging behind in reading ability and content.

During the 99 Charity Day activity (From September 1, 2021 to September 9, 2021), China 

Foundation for Poverty Alleviation invited more than one hundred social organizations and 

corporate partners to actively participate in the Tencent Charity Platform 95 Common Wealth 

Special Event and 99 Charity Day fundraising activities, conveying care to troubled population 

through 61 charity programs. We actively responded to the national rural revitalization 

strategy and the common prosperity action and raised from 1.4 million individuals RMB 

45.312 million of donation funds, which is used to support underdeveloped areas and 

vulnerable groups.

1 2
2
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Internet-Based Philanthropy

Alibaba Philanthropy

In 2021, China Foundation for Poverty Alleviation made a call for donation on the Alipay charity 

donation platform, and raised RMB 110 million. The funds were used to support a number 

of flagship programs such as Panda Pack, Backbone Project (Health Insurance for Poor 

Families’ Labors), and Nutritious Meals Program, etc. We also carried out activities such as 

“Spring-Festival Five Blessings “ and “Annual Good People and Good Deeds Gala”, calling 

on enterprises and the public to actively participate in Ant Manor, Ant New Village, Walker 

Donation, Points Donation and other charitable actions.

Alipay Philanthropy

In November 2021, the ByteDance charity platform was officially launched and implored 

users of Douyin, Toutiao and Xigua Video to actively participate in fundraising for the Moving 

Forward Program and Nutritious Meals Program, raising a total of RMB 3.04 million. In the 

“Charity Program Spokesperson” activity, a group of outstanding charity influencers such as @

Pengcheng Principal, @Teacher Xia who teaches English, and @wumengshanxia Vice Principal 

stood out and consistently voiced for charity programs.

ByteDance Philanthropy

In 2021, China Foundation for Poverty Alleviation carried out many internet fundraising activities 

through close cooperation with 11 charity platforms including Sina Weibo Charity, Bilibili Charity, 

Meituan Charity, Shuidi Charity, Easy Charity, China Social Poverty Alleviation Website, Suning 

Charity, Didi Charity, Rong e, Xiaomi Charity and Lianquan charity.

Third-party Internet Public Fundraising Platform

Tencent Philanthropy

Charity Baby

2.51
billion times of 

donations

Alipay Charity

47.92
million person-times 

of participation

Bytedance Charity

259,400
person-times of 

participation

Tencent charity platform

4.51
million person-times of 

participants

1  Launching Ceremony of XIN Yibai·Child 
    Development joint construction Program

1  Charitable netizens of Alipay philanthropy platform support the “ Home Restoration – Work-Relief” program

2  99 Charity Day offline activity site

2  Short Video Charity Talent, Principal Peng Cheng

3  Xiaomi charity platform “Panda Pack” program display
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In 2021, China Foundation for Poverty Alleviation communicated the concept of “More 

Giving, More Joy” which advocates the public to donate in small amounts every month 

, through multiple approaches such as channel cooperation, event operation, content 

operation, etc. As of December 31, 2021, monthly donors have reached 78,390 .

In 2021, two seasons of Philanthropic Communications Officer were carried out. More 

than 30,000 young people signed up to be communications officers, raising charity 

awareness of 330,000 people and more than 2,700 caring people were invited to join 

the Monthly Giving Initiative to provide continuous nutrition support for rural children. 

Zhang Yishan, Zheng Kai, Lin Gengxin, Liu Mintao, Rayza and other celebrities voiced 

their support for charity. A total of 317 people have been invited to be torchbearers for 

monthly giving and 866 people have been mobilized to join the Monthly Giving Initiative 

through sharing of thoughts, impressions and emotions among friends and family. We, 

in conjunction with the education foundations of 3 provinces and cities, implored 77 

high schools to establish the Alumni Monthly Giving Initiative, and nearly 10,000 alumni 

have been mobilized to participate in the Monthly Giving Initiative to help the students 

of their alumni. We have promoted Monthly Giving Initiative through cooperation with 8 

companies, including Codemao, Uncle Kai's Stories, Harvest Foundation, Jianzhi Keji, 24 

media platforms such as CCTV12, Sohu News, ZAKER, Gongyi.ifeng.com, Dadi Cinema 

Group, and 19 We-media influencer accounts. 77 events were organized in 2021, 

including the new monthly donors welcome parties, annual gathering, and philanthropy 

visits to program areas.
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Promoting Philanthropic Participation 
by Boosting Consumption

Monthly Giving Initiative

In recent years, China Foundation for Poverty Alleviation 

has been constantly exploring and innovating the methods 

for enterprise cooperation. We promoted charity through 

consumption by utilizing the advantages of enterprises to carry 

out fundraising activities and by innovative forms of customer 

donation and enterprise matching.

Since 2020, PepsiCo has cooperated with China Foundation 

for Poverty Alleviation and Wumart Group for two consecutive 

years to carry out the “Wumart Promotes Agriculture, Duodian 

Happy Things” charity activity. We supported specialty 

industries in underdeveloped areas through PepsiCo's product 

sales donation, and cooperated with Wumart for acquisition 

and sales at the same time.

From July 1, 2021 to August 31, 2021, for every pack of 

PepsiCo's Lay's potato chips purchased by consumers in 

any of more than 500 Wumart stores across the country or 

from online Duodian platform, PepsiCo donated RMB 0.1 for 

charity funds. A total of about RMB 1.8 million was donated 

through the event. Moreover, PepsiCo's Lay's brand donated 

RMB 200,000, and PepsiCo donated additional funds of 

USD 250,000 (donation managed by Give2Asia). The funds 

are used to support about 1,800 Hebei paddock farmer 

households in their pursuit of wealth by increasing their potato 

output. During harvest season, Wumart will purchase potatoes 

planted by farmers at market prices to help develop the 

industry and create a “from farm to table” method of helping 

farmers.

In September 2021, Quaker, a nutrition brand under PepsiCo, 

cooperated with China Foundation for Poverty Alleviation and 

Tencent Philanthropy to launch the “The meal is full of love” 

charity campaign, aiming to raise awareness of consumers on 

the malnutrition problems of children in underdeveloped areas 

and to promote the health benefits of oat meal. The campaign 

has been promoted and advertised through all online and 

offline platforms such as outdoor advertising, Tencent News, 

WeChat, Weibo, and e-commerce platforms. Since the 

launch, the campaign has accumulated 200 million views, and 

interacted with customers more than 4 million times. In this “The 

meal is full of love” charity campaign, Quaker donated 111,157 

Quaker oat products to children in Baoshan City and Pu'er City 

of Yunnan Province to improve the nutrition intake of children in 

mountainous areas, enabling them to embrace the future with 

a stronger body.

From August 25, 2021 to September 10, 2021, China 

Foundation for Poverty Alleviation and Yonghui's own brand 

“Tianqu” cooperated for the third year in a row and launched the 

“Yonghui Tianqu Nutritious Meals” sub-program through Tencent 

platform, and called on the whole society to help improve the 

nutritional status of children in underdeveloped areas in China 

through online advertisements and simultaneous promotion 

campaign in 389 offline stores.

1  “The meal is full of love” charity event poster

1  Philanthropic Communications Officer

2  Advertisement photo of Yonghui Supermarket’s participation in the 
    Tencent 99 Charity Day activity in 2021

2  “Moving Forward” monthly donors 
    visiting the program area

3  Launching ceremony of “Wumart Promotes Agriculture, Duodian Happy 
    Things” charity activity in 2021

3  Group photo of monthly donor and 
    beneficiary

existing monthly 
donors in contact

78,390
people
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To mobilize more people to participate in rural revitalization and to innovate the form 

of participation, China Foundation for Poverty Alleviation launched the “Great Walker, 

One Step One Change” initiative in 2014. The Initiative encourages the public to form 

a 4-person team to overcome difficulties and complete the set mileage within specified 

time. We mobilized people to participate in charity program in the form of donation or 

consumption with the belief that “every step will bring about change”, which promotes 

the development of rural industries and contributes to rural revitalization.

As of December 31, 2021, we have held 19 events in 8 sessions with the “Great Walker, 

One Step One Change” initiative. A total of 16,000 teams from more than 150 cities in 

more than 10 countries signed up for the events. 39,800 person-times  participated 

in the walk, 27,700 person-times  completed the challenge, and 33,100 people(times) 

of volunteers and staff provided services. A total of RMB 57.9895 million was raised 

for charity and agricultural aid, and 618,400 person-times articipated in donation 

and assistance through consumption. The initiative was supported by more than 100 

enterprises, more than 60 celebrities and more than 100 media platforms.

In 2021, a “Great Walker, One Step One Change” event was successfully held in Chengdu 

City. At the same time, preparation for the “Great Walker, One Step One Change” event in 

Beijing was carried out. A total of 1,972 teams signed up for the event, and 2,424 people 

successfully completed the challenge. At the same time, the launch of the 2021 “Great 

Walker in China. Good from Start” online campaign attracted 51,000 participants. In 2021, a 

total of 36,500 person-times  participated in donation and assistance through consumption 

for helping farmers, and RMB 5.71 million was raised. Furthermore, RMB 558,400 was used 

for the Panda Package program; RMB123,900 was used for the New Great Wall Scholarship 

Program for High-School Students program; RMB 762,700 was used for the Love Kitchen 

program; RMB 10,800 was used for the Nutritious Meals program; RMB 565,500 was used 

for the Philanthropy for Everyone program; RMB 476,400 was used for the e-commerce 

poverty alleviation program; RMB 681,400 was used to help farmers in Xi County; RMB 

23,900 was used to support the Nutritious Meals for Children program in Nepal. At the 

same time, in 2021, the participants of the Great Walker initiative actively supported the 

Great Walker Helping Farmers Program and delivered an aid of RMB 2,506,600 through 

consumption, which helped increase farmers’ income.

The “One Yuan Donation” program is a nationwide fundraising 

campaign jointly launched by China Foundation for Poverty 

Alleviation and Yum China in 2008. Every year, an event for the 

program is held in restaurants under Yum China's brand such as 

KFC and Pizza Hut, advocating for the whole society to donate 

to improve the nutrition status of children in underdeveloped 

regions. By encouraging consumers to start from the little thing 

such as “giving a donation to express love”, we made it possible 

for everyone to participate in charity, thus promoting the concept 

of “everyone can be charitable”.

As of December 31, 2021, the program had raised more 

than RMB 230 million in total, and about 130 million person-

times have participated in donation. The program has built a 

Philanthropy for Everyone donation platform. By the end of 

2021, the “One Yuan Donation” program had benefited 800,000 

children (times) from 76 counties (districts and cities) of 42 cities 

(prefectures) in 14 provinces (autonomous regions), including 

Yunnan, Guizhou, Sichuan, etc .It provided about 52.8 million 

servings of Nutritious Meals for students and equipped 1,261 

schools with Love Kitchen equipment.

In 2021, the “One Yuan Donation” campaign was carried out in 

Yum China's restaurants all over China, such as KFC, Pizza Hut, 

Taco Bell, Dongfang Jibai and some Little Sheep restaurants. It 

was simultaneously carried out in APPs, embedded programs 

and other online food ordering platforms of KFC and Pizza Hut, 

and the online channel of “V Gold Donating Love”. In order to 

diversify fundraising methods of the program based on previous 

methods, Love Coupon was launched for the first time to 

express thanks to the public for their donation. We sought to call 

on the families and children of Yum employees, upstream and 

downstream supply chains and external partners to participate 

in the program to further expand the donation. At the same time, 

celebrities were invited to promote and advertise for the program, 

which made the “One Yuan Donation” program very well known.

In 2021, the “One Yuan Donation” program raised a total of 

more than RMB 12 million. More than 3.11 million person-times 

participated in the donation.
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Great Walker, One Step One Change One Yuan Donation

Number of people who 
donated and helped 

farmers in 2021

36,500
people

Funds raised to help 
farmers in 2021

RMB 5.71
million

1  Photo of the 2021 Chengdu City Great 
    Walker activity

1  One Yuan Donation Program is granted the “Annual Most Well Known 
    Charity Work Award” from the Tencent Charity Promotion Program

2  Team members participate in the Great 
    Walker activity

2  One Yuan Donation Program offline restaurant donation promotion 
    site in 2021

3  Team members participate in the Great 
    Walker activity

3  Children are happily eating nutritious meals

Number of donors in 2021

3.11 million people(times)

Funds raised in 2021

RMB 12 million



CHINA FOUNDATION FOR RURAL DEVELOPMENT ANNUAL REPORT 2021

40 41

CHINA FOUNDATION FOR RURAL DEVELOPMENT ANNUAL REPORT 2021

The “Unite the Force for Good” is a nationwide volunteer service initiative oriented to 

undergraduates launched by China Foundation for Poverty Alleviation in 2011. The program 

encourages young undergraduates to devote 100% of their passion to philanthropy 

and charity, and promotes the creation of a good atmosphere for charity. The program 

encourages young undergraduates to devote 100% of their efforts to carry out social 

fundraising mobilization in the voluntary spirit to help more children in rural areas realize their 

dreams, which will contribute to rural revitalization. It also encourages them to devote 100% 

of their energy to expand their social horizons, enhance adaptability, improve overall quality, 

and help others while helping and improving themselves.

As of December 31, 2021, 19 sessions of “Unite the Force for Good” program have been 

carried out. 716,700 undergraduate volunteers of 328 colleges and universities in 127 

cities of 31 provinces (autonomous regions and municipality directly under the Central 

Government) have participated in the program, raising a total of RMB 101.4 million., 

benefiting more than 670,000 primary-school students in underdeveloped areas.

In 2021, two sessions of “Unite the Force for Good” program were held. More than 

60,000 college student volunteers from 148 colleges and university societies nationwide 

participated in the initiative. 546,300 persons were mobilized to participate in donations, 

and RMB 5.44 million of funds was raised, benefiting 79,000 people from 7 provinces, 

including Heilongjiang, Qinghai, Sichuan, Hebei, Gansu, etc. and Gelan in Ethiopia. The 

program delivered 25,500 Warm Packs, 224 Art Packs, and 52,407 nutritious meals to 

underdeveloped areas, and 1,258 food packs to the Ethiopian region.
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The “Love Knows No Borders” International Charity Sale was 

launched in 2009 by the Ministry of Foreign Affairs of the 

People's Republic of China. In 2016, China Foundation for 

Poverty Alleviation was invited to jointly organize the charity 

sale. So far, a total of over RMB 36 million has been raised. 

22 convenience bridges, 7 village clinics, 1 township health 

center, 2 large-scale comprehensive sports fields for schools, 

4 playgrounds for primary schools have been constructed in 

underdeveloped areas. Cochlear implants have been implanted 

for 127 children with congenital hearing impairment, and 50 

actually fact orphans have received the care and warmth.

On December 18, 2021, the opening ceremony of the 

“Love Knows No Borders - Rural Revitalization, Health Care 

First” International Charity Sale was held in Beijing. State 

Councilor and Foreign Minister Wang Yi and his wife Qian Wei, 

Secretary of the CPC Committee of the Ministry of Foreign 

Affairs Qi Yu, Vice Minister Le Yucheng, President of China 

Foundation for Poverty Alleviation Zheng Wenkai, and more 

than 160 representatives of foreign embassies, international 

organizations and enterprises attended the ceremony offline 

or online. In 2021, The Charity Sale was also held online due 

to the COVID-19. In addition to diplomatic envoys to China, 

the reprentatives of designated counties of asisstance and 

cooperation support from the Ministry of Foreign Affairs were 

invited to carry out live broadcast for sale. Nearly 7 millions 

online participants watched the live broadcast. More than RMB 

10 million was raised through the event and the funds will be 

used to offer necessary medical equipment for the Physical 

Examination Center of Jinping County People's Hospital and 

Malipo County Maternal and Child Health and Family Planning 

Service Center, which will deliver more protection for the health 

of local residents.
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Unite the Force for Good
The “Love Knows No Borders” 
International Charity Sale

Number of the public 
who donated in 2021

546,300
people

Funds raised in 2021

RMB 5.44
million

1  Mrs. Lu Xifen, Deputy Director of Student 
    Affairs Department and member of the CPC 
    Committee of Sichuan University distributing 
    Warm Packs to primary-school students 
    with volunteers

2  “Unite the Force for Good - Ethiopian Children 
    Zero-Hunger” program is distributing the first 
    batch of Warm Packs in Ethiopia

3  Volunteers of Guangzhou University gather 
    in front of Xi Coffee

1  Ms. Qian Wei, State Councilor and Foreign Minister Wang Yi’s wife, 
    delivered the opening remarks on the opening ceremony

2  Scene of the live broadcast of the charity sale

3  Wang Yi, Member of the State Council and Foreign Minister, attended 
    the opening ceremony of the charity sale
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To encourage foreign enterprises to better participate in the 

consolidation of the achievements of poverty alleviation and to 

effectively contribute to rural revitalization, China Foundation 

for Poverty Alleviation and China Association of Enterprises 

with Foreign Investment jointly launched the “Consolidation and 

Revitalization-Foreign Enterprises Cohesion Action for Rural 

Revitalization”  platform in 2019, aiming to encourage foreign 

enterprises to contribute to China's rural revitalization and to 

facilitate the Sustainable Development Goals by carrying out 

exchange conference and capacity building activities, such as 

foreign enterprises public welfare program case studies, program 

site visits, seminars and salons.

In 2021, China Foundation for Poverty Alleviation compiled the 

report of “2016-2020 Poverty Alleviation Actions by  Foreign-

funded Enterprises in China” and hosted the “Consolidation and 

Revitalization-Foreign Enterprises Excellent Program Online Case 

Exhibition” for the first time on the 9th China Charity Fair.
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In 2021, 89 foreign-funded enterprises donated more than 

RMB 200 million through China Foundation for Poverty 

Alleviation. Apple , Samsung, Starbucks, VISA, Qualcomm 

and other foreign enterprises carried out industrial programs 

in the field of industry development, such as Bona Villa and 

Agricultural Income-Generation Project (Shanpin E-Commerce). 

Wal-Mart, Yum Group, and USANA BabyCare Co., Ltd. 

carried out programs in the field of healthcare, such as One 

Yuan Donation and Nutritious Program. Nike, ABB Group, 

and Volkswagen Group (China) carried out programs in the 

field of education, such as Domestic Panda Pack Project, 

Charity Future, and New Great Wall Scholarship Program for 

Undergraduate Students. In addition, many foreign companies 

cooperated with us in the fields of disaster relief, rural talent 

training and capacity building, etc.

China Foundation for Poverty Alleviation launched the 

Running Water Initiative. The initiative aims to support the 

development of social organizations in underdeveloped areas 

and the introduction of social resources through institutional 

empowerment and the establishment of resource platforms. It 

helps underdeveloped areas play a role in the third distribution, 

and establishes an effective long-term mechanism for social 

forces to participate in consolidating and expanding the 

achievements of poverty alleviation to comprehensively promote 

rural revitalization.

As of December 31, 2021, the initiative had raised a total of 

RMB 68.7604 million in funds and supplies, benefiting 44,000 

people cumulatively in 30 counties (cities, districts) of 10 

cities (prefectures) in 6 provinces (municipality directly under 

the Central Government), including Guizhou, Sichuan, Hubei, 

Jiangxi, Gansu, and Chongqing.
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Actions of Foreign-funded Enterprises 
for Rural Revitalization

Running Water Initiative

1  “Consolidation and Revitalization-Foreign 
    Enterprises Excellent Program Online Case 
    Exhibition” was demonstrated on the 9th China 
    Charity Fair

2  The CSR Committee of the China Association 
    of Enterprises with Foreign Investment held the 
    annual secretariat members meeting

1  2021 kick-off meeting of the Running Water Initiative

2  2021 program training session for the Running Water Initiative

3  2021 Charity Day Joint Action for the Running Water Initiative

4  Photo of the beneficiaries of Bijie Tongxin Running Water Initiative under 
    Running Water Initiative

Social organizations supported

24
Program expenditure in 2021

RMB 30.78 million

In 2021, the initiative raised RMB 44.9402 million and spent 

RMB 30.78 million, benefiting 24,000 people 25 counties in 10 

cities of 6 provinces, including Guizhou, Sichuan, Hubei, Jiangxi, 

Gansu and Chongqing.
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China Foundation for Poverty Alleviation launched the NPO 

Cooperation Projects in 2013 in response to the lack of abilities 

of social organizations to solve social problems. The projects 

aim to facilitate social organizations to carry out programs in 

industrial development, talent development, rural development 

and social undertakings by offering comprehensive support 

for social organizations such as program funds and program 

management capacity building. They will help improve 

comprehensive development capacity of social organizations 

and serve the society with high quality.

As of December 31, 2021, the NPO Cooperation Projects 

have raised RMB 197.5877 million, and the total number 

of beneficiaries had reached 1.1013 million. The projects 

have benefited 583 counties (cities, districts) of 31 provinces 

(autonomous regions and municipality directly under the Central 

Government).

1

3

2

China Foundation for Poverty Alleviation launched the “Philanthropy for Everyone” Online 

Fundraising Platform in 2014, aiming to equip more social organizations with the ability 

to mobilize internet resources and to expand fundraising channels by providing social 

organizations with internet fundraising platform support and capacity building in program 

design, management, and fundraising so as to carry out high-quality charity programs.

As of December 31, 2021, the “Philanthropy for Everyone” program had raised RMB 

370.796 million, benefiting 3.0382 million people in 1,101 counties (cities, districts) of 31 

provinces (autonomous regions and municipality directly under the Central Government).

In 2021, the program raised RMB 26.8597 million and spent RMB 45.56 million to support 

58 social organizations, benefiting 99,900 people in 221 counties (cities, districts) of 30 

provinces (autonomous regions and municipality directly under the Central Government).

3

21

Social organizations 
supported

58

NPO Cooperation Projects
The “Philanthropy for Everyone” 
Online Fundraising Platform

In 2021, the projects raised RMB 20.7019 million and spent 

RMB 20.87 million to support 26 social organizations, benefiting 

37,700 people in 230 counties (cities, districts) of 30 provinces 

(autonomous regions and municipality directly under the Central 

Government).

Social organizations supported

26
Program expenditure in 2021

RMB 20.87 million

1  ME Innovation Initiative: Farmers show honey they produced -Xiaokang 
    Elderly Care Service Center in Minhe Hui and Tu Autonomous County

2  ME Innovation Initiative: Villagers are organized to visit chicken farms-
    Yunnan Zhendian Institute of Social Organization Development

3  ME Innovation Initiative: Increase the rural early childhood education's 
    acessibilty through empower local women - Chengdu Tongmeng Social 
    Work Service Center

By the end of 2021, the program had raised RMB 258 million, providing public fundraising 

support for 2,140 programs.

In 2021, the “Philanthropy for Everyone” - Tencent Philanthropy Joint Fundraising Initiative 

supported 35 charity programs to participate in the “99 Charity Day” campaign, and 

raised RMB 13.8558 million.

“Philanthropy for Everyone” 
- Tencent Philanthropy Joint Fundraising Initiative

By the end of 2021, the program had raised RMB 103.6 million, providing public 

fundraising support for 51 projects.

In 2021, the XIN Yibai Joint Charity Initiative provided public fundraising support for 2 

programs, and raised RMB 2.6302 million.

XIN Yibai Joint Charity Initiative
(formerly “Goods for Good” Joint Fundraising Initiative)

Program expenditure 
in 2021

RMB 45.56
million

1  Lushan Teenager Growth Camp-20KM 
    Hiking Challenge, Hunan Boundless Love 
    Youth Public Welfare Development Center

2  Children Beneficiaries in Yunnan Region 
    of Beijing Leping Social Entrepreneur 
    Foundation Rural Preschool Education 
    Quality Improvement Program

3  Veteran of the War to Resist U.S. 
    Aggression and Aid Korea, a beneficiary 
    of Shenzhen Longyue Charity 
    Foundation program
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Through out 2021, the Office of the Innovation and Social Enterprise Promotion Center of CFPA has steadily rolled out projects on social 

enterprise innovation in terms of construction of impact investment funds, academic research and interdisciplinary engagement. The 

office discussed the collaboration of impact investment funds with the relevant departments in Beijing, Chengdu, Shenzhen, Guangzhou 

and other cities, visiting relevant enterprises. For academic research, well-known scholars were invited to carry out subject research 

on Research on Policy Innovation and Diffusion of Social Enterprises in China and Laws and Regulations on Social Enterprises Outside 

the Territory. As for interdisciplinary engagement, we held the Social Enterprise Practices Conference, and invited the government, 

institutions, platforms, experts and scholars to discuss how the CFPA could play a better role in the field of social innovation. During this 

period，the CFPA has been actively promoting the concept of social innovation through industry events.

1

2

In order to cultivate and improve charity awareness and comprehensive quality of 

college students, China Foundation for Poverty Alleviation launched the “Charity Future” 

program in 2013. The program aims to support college students, especially those from 

families with financial difficulties, to carry out social practice activities in communities  

through integration of social resources so as to improve comprehensive abilities of 

college students. Focusing on the charity associations in colleges and universities and 

targetting at college students, the program encourages young people to contribute to 

social development and rural revitalization with innovative methods. Through training and 

practice, the program helps them become a new generation of youth who have creativity, 

teamwork ability and can shoulder social responsibility.

Up to December 31, 2021, the program had supported 327 associations in 198 colleges 

and universities in more than 30 provinces (autonomous regions and municipalities 

directly under the Central Government), cultivated 2,681 key leaders of the student 

organizations who have rich work and management experience, and had benefited more 

than 1.2 million young people.

In 2021, the program raised RMB 9.33 million and spent RMB 9.42 million. The program 

mobilized 94 charity organizations in 30 provinces (autonomous regions and municipality 

directly under the Central Government) to participate in charity, directly affecting 200,000 

college students. 7 special projects have been carried out in total, including Mars 

Wrigley Waste Disposal Program, Mars Wrigley Sustainability, “Mars” GO Program, 

Bank of America Youth Development Program, Citigroup Youth Development Program, 

Talent Fund Program, Enlightening the Future-Red Flag Dream Summer Camp, 2021 

Charity Future · Today at Apple Creative Studios. We also held 5 large events, including 

Launching Ceremony of Bank of America Youth Development Program, National Finals of 

Waste Disposal Program, National Launching Ceremony of Mars Wrigley Sustainability, 

“Mars” GO Program, and a total of 20 online training activities.

College associations 
supported

327

1 2

3

4

Charity Future Social Enterprise Innovation

1  2021 Charity Future • Launching Ceremony of Bank of America Youth   
    Development Program and College Training Seminar

1  Executive Vice President Liu Wenkui gave a 
    keynote speech titled “The Value and Role of 
    Social Enterprises”

2  Jiujiang University Self-improvement Society launches the “Passing Fire of  
    Self-improvement · Talent Show” activity

2  Social enterprise practice exchange 
    conference held by the China Foundation for 
    Poverty Alleviation

3  2021 Charity Future. Group photo of participants of the training meeting for 
    university leaders of the Red Flag Dream Self-improvement Class

4  2021 Charity Future · Today at Apple Creative Studios Closing Ceremony

Program expenditure 
in 2021

RMB 9.42
million
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With the philosophy of "Love without Borders, People to People 

Connectivity" and the principles of "Respect for the Locals, Driven by 

Needs", we carry out international cooperation in poverty reduction 

and facilitate building a community with a shared future for mankind, 

centering around the six United Nations Sustainable Development 

Goals of "No Poverty", "Zero Hunger", "Good Health and Well-being", 

"Quality Education", "Clean Water and Sanitation" and "Decent Work 

and Economic Growth".

MYANMAR OFFICE

NEPAL OFFICE

CFPA ETHIOPIA OFFICE

INTERNATIONAL PANDA 
PACK PROJECT

INTERNATIONAL SMILING 
CHILDREN PROGRAM

OTHER INTERNATIONAL 
PROJECTS

INTERNATIONAL ADVOCACY

INTERNATIONAL 
PROJECTS

Myanmar Office

With the support from Embassy of China in Myanmar, the 

Myanmar Office distributed 2,584 food packs to students. The 

distribution has benefited three schools and families in need from 

two townships, which covered two states (Yangon and Kachin) 

and relieved people livings that affected by the COVID-19 

pandemic.

Food Pack Distribution Program for COVID-19 
Pandemic Relief

With the support from Embassy of China in Myanmar, the 

Myanmar Office distributed 200 Solar Lanterns in the power 

shortage township of Shan State. The program has benefited 

200 students and their families, which has improved their living 

and learning conditions.

Solar Lantern Program

With the support from Embassy of China in Myanmar and Bank 

of China (Hong Kong) Limited Yangon Branch, the Myanmar 

Office distributed 1,000 prevention materials packs against 

COVID-19 pandemic. The program has benefited 1,000 

students and teachers from 12 schools at three townships in 

Yangon State.

Prevention Materials Distribution Program Against 
COVID-19 Pandemic

The severe third-wave of the COVID-19 pandemic led to an 

extreme shortage of medical oxygen supply in Myanmar. In order 

to relieve this situation, the Myanmar Office donated 12 oxygen 

generator to the Sao San Htun Hospital in Shan State for the 

treatment of patients.

Small Oxygen Generator Donation Program for 
COVID-19 Pandemic Relief

1

3

2

4

1  Food Packs Donated by Embassy of China in Myanmar

2  The School Principal Handed Over Solar Lantern to the Beneficiary Student

3  The Beneficiary School Received Prevention Materials

4  The Sao San Htun Hospital Received 12 Oxygen Generator
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During the outbreak of the second-wave of COVID-19 pandemic 

in Nepal, with the support from Giving2Asia, A Drop of Life 

and other organizations, the Nepal office alinged with local 

partners to build 15 community quarantine stations in 9 regions 

(Kathmandu, Janakpur,Lalbandi, Dolakha, Nawalparasi, Barpak, 

Doka, Kirtipur, and Pharping), equiping with medical supplies, 

such as oxygen cylinders, prevention supplies and community 

sterilization, and food pack.

Community Quarantine Station Proram Against 
COVID-19 pandemic

With the donation from Pundiraka Charity, the Nepal office 

donated 140 oxygen generators to 50 hospitals in order to 

alleviate the supply shortage of oxygen under the local COVID-19 

pandemic.

Oxygen Generator Donation Program for 
COVID-19 Pandemic Relief

With the support from Zhejiang An foundation, Macao Meg 

Star Charity and Guangzhou Tianxi Buddhists Association, 

the Nepal Office donated food packs, gas cans and tents, 

beds, shoes and family first aid kit to Kathmandu and 

Melachi. These two regions were greatly affected by the flood 

disater. The program has benefited 1,308 families and 6,500 

beneficiaries.

Flood Disaster Relief Program

Nepal Office

With the support from local partner, the Nepal office provided 

Chinese residents living at Thamel in Kathmandu with 240 sets 

of desks and chairs in order to help the students who were 

affected by the COVID-19 pandemic and the flood disaster.

School Desk and Chair Support Program

With the support from A Drop of Life, the Nepal office aligned 

with the local partner to build a water system for Nawalparasi, 

Village. The project aims at relieving the water supply shortage 

in this community. The project invested a total of RMB 

950,000, which has benefited 814 households, 4,700 people in 

the village.

Water System Construction for the Whole 
Village Project

With the support from Laoniu Brother&Sister Foundation, the 

Nepal office conducted the vocational training for youth in need 

in five regions, such as Butwal, Chitwan, Nawalparasi, Lalitpur 

and Pharping. The vocational training included theoretical 

knowledge and pratical operation of being a professional 

wireman and plumber. After three months of trainning, 156 

beneficiaries found a job.

Youth Vocational Training Project

1

3

2

1  The Donation Cenemory of Community Quarantine Station Program

2  One of Beneficiary Hospitals Received Oxygen Generators

3  Food Packs Donated by Several Organizations

2

3

1

1  Beneficiary Students Are Using New Desks and Chairs

2  A Water System At Nawalparasi Village

3  The Completion Cenemory of Youth Vocational Training
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China Foundation for Poverty Alleviation and Alibaba Philanthropy jointly launched 

the international Panda Pack Project in 2019. With the slogan “Gifts from the Panda 

Country”, the program aims to improve the learning, sanitation and living conditions of the 

primary-school students in developing countries around China and the countries along 

the “Belt and Road” route by providing learning, hygiene, health and daily necessities for 

the student. It also aims to promote the all-round development of students, to convey the 

love of the Chinese people, and to build a bridge of friendship with heartfelt connectivity.

In 2021, the program raised RMB 52.63 million and spent RMB 28.31 million to support 

203,600 primary-school students in 8 countries. Since launched in 2019, the program 

has raised a total of RMB 128 million and spent RMB 111 million. By the end of 2021, 

the program had benefited 935,936 primary-school students in 11 countries, including 

Myanmar, Nepal, Ethiopia, Cambodia, Namibia, Pakistan, Laos, Uganda, Mongolia, 

Zimbabwe and the Philippines.

1

32

Panda Pack Project

Funds raised in 2021

RMB 52.63
million

Program expenditure 
in 2021

RMB  28.31
million

1  Ethiopian Panda Pack distribution ceremony

2  Myanmar primary-school student beneficiaries 
    show Panda Packs

3  Nepalese primary-school student beneficiaries 
    show the contents of the packs

CFPA Ethiopia Office

Partnering with XCMG and Splash, CFPA supports system for water storage, purifying, drinking and 

washing in 40 schools in Addis Ababa. In November 2021, CFPA held the completion ceremony for 

the first phase of 20 schools. The project not only provides children with access to clean water, it 

also promotes an integrated view of Water, Hygiene and Sanitation as a three-fold chord to advance 

health outcomes.

School WASH Project

In 2021, the Ethiopia office launched the "Brighten the Future" Solar Lamp” Project, aiming at helping 

students who have difficulty to access electricity for living and learning, improving their basic living 

conditions, and increasing their study hours. With the help from Shenzhen Power-Solution Co., Ltd, 

the program distributed solar lights to 3,000 students from ten public schools in Addis Ababa and 

Oromia, Ethiopia.

" Brighten the Future" Solar Lamp Project

1

2

1  Beneficiary Students Are Drinking 
    Purified Water

2  A Beneficiary Student Are Curious  
    About the Solar Lamp
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China Foundation for Poverty Alleviation has carried out many 

poverty alleviation programs for the poor and vulnerable 

groups in the world through cooperation with local partners in 

education, health care, community livelihood and other fields. 

The programs aim to help the poor and vulnerable groups obtain 

resources, escape poverty and vulnerable conditions, achieve 

self-development, which will contribute to the building of a 

community of a shared future for mankind.

In 2021, China Foundation for Poverty Alleviation raised RMB 

5,243,000 for other international programs, and spent RMB 

1,919,500, benefiting 41,478 people (times). The implemented 

programs include Myanmar Anti-COVID-19 Small Oxygen 

Concentrator Assistance Program, Myanmar Community WASH 

Project, Nepalese Community anti-COVID-19 Isolation Point 

Oxygen Station Project, Emergency Relief Food Pack Program, 

Family Pack Program and School Desk and Chair Support 

Program, Nepalese Community WASH Program, Ethiopia Solar 

Lantern Student Aid Program and School Wash Program, etc.

1

2 3

For international advocacy, China Foundation for Poverty 

Alleviation hosted the Parallel Event of the 47th Session of 

Human Rights Council, “Protection of Economic, Social and 

Cultural Rights Amidst the COVID-19 Pandemic”, the launching 

meeting of the cooperation with UNDP project in Turkmenistan, 

the Parallel Event of the 6th China-Africa People’s Forum, 

“Experience Exchange on Poverty Alleviation” Annual Summary 

Meeting of Myanmar Office, Nepal Office, and Ethiopia Office, the 

46th and 48th  Session of Human Rights Council, the Second 

Anniversary of the Silk Road Community Building Initiative, 

the 6th Annual Conference of Taihu World Cultural Forum, the 

Status Quo of Chinese Enterprises fulfilling Social Responsibility 

In Myanmar, etc. CFPA participated in the program recording of 

“The Power of Philanthropy” and “Vision China” and an exclusive 

interview by China-Arab TV.

1

2 3

4

China Foundation for Poverty Alleviation launched the Smiling 

Children Program in 2015 to help hungry children grow up 

healthily by offering meals or distributing foods. It conveys the 

love of the Chinese people and contributes to the building of 

heartfelt connectivity.

In 2021, the International Smiling Children Project further 

improved program management, steadily expanded the scale 

of school meals or food distribution to benefit more people, 

raised a total of RMB 10.52 million (including RMB 4.5742 

million for the WFP feeding program), and spent RMB 9.54 

million (including RMB 2.8786 million for the WFP feeding 

program). The program has benefitted 32,627 people in 

6 countries including Ethiopia, Nepal, Myanmar, Pakistan, 

Cambodia and Laos, achieved remarkable results in hunger 

elimination, and has been highly affirmed and appreciated by 

beneficiary governments and the people.

1 2

3

Other International Projects

International Advocacy

Smiling Children Program

Funds raised in 2021

RMB 10.52 million

Program expenditure in 2021

RMB 9.54 million

1  Nepalese primary-school students receive food packs and express 
    gratitude to the donors

1  Ethiopian School WASH Project

2  Laos program primary-school student beneficiaries

2  Myanmar Hospital Small Oxygen Concentrator Assistance Program

3  Ethiopian primary-school students receive food packs

3  Nepal Whole Village Water System Construction Project

1  Vice President Chen Zhigang attends the “6th Annual Conference of 
    World Cultural Forum (Taihu China) - Sub-forum on Culture and Poverty 
    Alleviation” in Bengbu, Anhui

2  Executive Vice President Liu Wenkui attended the 48th session of the 
    UN Human Rights Council

3  Then Executive Vice President Wang Xingzui participates in the 
    recording of China Daily's “Vision China” program

4  China Foundation for Poverty Alleviation hosts online parallel side 
    meeting of the 47th session of the UN Human Rights Council
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Pakistan

Cambodia

Ethiopia

Laos

Turkmenistan

Philippines

MyanmarNepal

The designations employed and the presentation of the material on this map do not imply the expression of any opinion whatsoever on the part of China Foundation for 

Poverty Alleviation concerning the legal status of any country, territory, city or area or of its authorities, or concerning the delimitation of its frontiers or boundaries.

Every effort is made to ensure this map is free of errors but there is no warrant the map or its features are either spatially or temporally accurate or fit for a particular use. 

This map is provided without any warranty of any kind whatsoever, either express or implied.

Uganda

International Program Map 2021
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To China Foundation for Poverty Alleviation:

I. Audit Opinions
We have audited the attached financial statements of China Foundation for Poverty Alleviation, including the Balance Sheet as at Dec. 31, 2021, Operating 

Activity Statement, Cash Flow Statement and Notes to Financial Statements of Year 2021.

We believe that the attached financial statements are prepared in all major aspects as per the provisions of Accounting Rules for Non-profit Organizations, which 

truly reflect the financial situation of China Foundation for Poverty Alleviation as at Dec. 31, 2021, and the operation results and cash flow in the Year 2021.

II. Basis for Audit Opinions
We carried out the audit work in accordance with the Audit Rules for Chinese Certified Public Accountants. Our responsibilities under the Audit Rules 

are further described in Section III (Responsibility of Certified Public Accountant on Auditing Financial Statements) of the audit report below. According 

to the Code of Ethics for Chinese Certified Public Accountants, we are independent from China Foundation for Poverty Alleviation and have fulfilled other 

responsibilities in terms of professional ethics. We believe that the audit evidences we have obtained are sufficient and appropriate to provide basis for our 

audit opinions.

III. Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
China Foundation for Poverty Alleviation is responsible for faithfully preparing the financial statements which achieve fair reflection as per the provisions of 

Accounting Rules for Non-profit Organizations, and also for designing, implementing and maintaining internal control to ensure that the financial statements 

are free of major misstatements caused by fraud or mistake.

IV. Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objective is to obtain reasonable assurance that the whole financial statements are free from major misstatements caused by fraud or mistake, and 

to produce an audit report including the audit opinion. Reasonable assurance is assurance of a high level. However, it is not assurance that audit work 

performed in accordance with the Audit Rules can always discover each of existing major misstatements. The misstatements may result from fraud or 

mistake, and are generally considered material if the misstatements could reasonably be expected to, individually or in aggregate, affect economic decisions 

made by users of the financial statements.

We exercised professional judgment and maintained professional skepticism in performing our audit work in accordance with the Audit Rules. At the same 

time, we also carried out the following work:

(1) Identified and assessed the risks of material misstatements of the financial statements caused by fraud or mistake, designed and implemented audit 

procedures to address these risks, and obtained sufficient and appropriate audit evidence that can provide basis for giving audit opinions. Because fraud 

may involve collusion, forgery, willful omission, misrepresentation or overriding of internal control, the risk of failure to discover material misstatement caused 

by fraud is higher than that of failure to discover material misstatement caused by error.

(2) Obtained the information on internal control related to the audit so as to design appropriate audit procedures, but the purpose is not to express our 

opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control.

(3) Evaluated the appropriateness of the management's selection of accounting policies and the rationality of accounting estimates and related disclosures.

(4) Evaluated the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, and evaluated whether the financial statements fairly reflect relevant 

transactions and events.

Balance Sheet
Prepared by: CFPA                                                                 Year 2021                                                                        Currency: RMB

Assets Line
Amount at 
Beginning  

of the Year

Amount at End 
of the Year

Current Assets:

Monetary assets 1 416,794,604.55 111,393,022.21 

Short-term investments 2 895,473,917.83 1,356,444,979.80 

Accounts receivable

Prepayments 3 98,950,833.25 7,180,458.26 

Other receivables 4 3,987,695.44 2,483,243.87

Inventory 5 61,526,743.96 77,771,911.40

Deferred expenses

Other current assets

Total current assets 1,476,733,795.03 1,555,273,615.54 

Long-term equity 
investment

6 25,584,027.35 4,633,060.28

Long-term bond 
investment

7 78,764,563.27 89,000,000.00 

Total long-term 
investment

104,348,590.62 93,633,060.28

Original value of  
fixed assets

8 16,903,499.23 326,042,271.70 

Subtract: Accumulated 
depreciation

8 7,156,804.09  16,256,928.84 

Net value of fixed assets 8 9,746,695.14  309,785,342.86 

Construction in progress 9 15,863,712.69 

Cultural relics &  
cultural assets

10 273,892.00 273,892.00 

Disposal of fixed assets

Total fixed assets 10,020,587.14 325,922,947.55

Intangible assets 11 7,347,806.19 7,084,615.11 

Other 
non-current assets

12 4,114,616.10 2,846,805.60 

Fiduciary agency assets

Fiduciary agency assets

Total assets 1,602,565,395.08 1,984,761,044.08

Assets Line
Amount at 
Beginning  

of the Year

Amount at End 
of the Year

Current liabilities:

Short-term borrowing

Accounts payable 13 9,691,031.75 1,733,097.20

Salaries payable 14 2,014,658.75 2,024,962.84

Tax payable 15 123,805.85 86,278.98

Other payables 16 1,428,241.34 11,936,917.50

prepayments

Accrued expenses

Long-term liabilities due 
within one year

Total current liabilities 13,257,737.69 15,781,256.52

Long term borrowing

Long-term payables

Total long-term 
liabilities

Fiduciary agency 
liabilities

Total liabilities 13,257,737.69 15,781,256.52

Net assets:

Net unrestricted assets 17 752,991,303.31 733,085,209.90

Net restricted assets 17 836,316,354.08 1,235,894,577.66

Total net assets 1,589,307,657.39 1,968,979,787.56 

Sum of liabilities and 
net assets

1,602,565,395.08  1,984,761,044.08 

Chinese Certified 
Public Accountant 
(Project Partner): 

Chinese Certified 
Public Accountant:

March 15, 2022Beijing, China

Shine Wing Certified Public 
Accountants 

(Special General Partnership)

Person in charge:Wenkai Zheng                                                                                                                      Person in charge of accounting: Chen Hongtao
Head of accounting organization: Tang Fengmei                                                                                                                            Made By: Wang Zhengyang
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Prepared by: CFPA                                                                 Year 2021                                                                        Currency: RMB

Person in charge:Wenkai Zheng                                                                                                                      Person in charge of accounting: Chen Hongtao
Head of accounting organization: Tang Fengmei                                                                                                                            Made By: Wang Zhengyang

Operating Activity Statement

Item Line
Current Year

Unrestricted Income Restricted Income Sub-total

I. Income

Including: income from donation 1 199,521.27 1,340,516,638.85 1,340,716,160.12

Income from provision of services 2 4,470,381.62 4,470,381.62

Income from goods sales 3

Income from governmental subsidies 4

Investment income 5 58,213,299.77 58,213,299.77

Other income 6 3,144,601.23 3,144,601.23

Total income 7  66,027,803.89  1,340,516,638.85 1,406,544,442.74 

II. Expenses

(I) Business activity expenses 8 970,033,470.07 970,033,470.07

(II) Administrative expenses 9 37,041,174.15 37,041,174.15

(III) Financing expenses 10 17,723,361.09 17,723,361.09

(IV) Other expenses 11 80,107.26 80,107.26

Total expenses 12 1,024,878,112.57 - 1,024,878,112.57

III. Converting net restricted assets to  
net unrestricted assets

13 940,934,215.27 -940,934,215.27 -

IV. Changes in net assets (a decreased value in net 
assets is marked with “-”)

14 -17,916,093.41 399,582,423.58 381,666,330.17

Item Line
Last Year

Unrestricted Income Restricted Income Sub-total

I. Income

Including: income from donation 1 52,360.33 1,101,149,407.86 1,101,201,768.19

Income from provision of services 2

Income from goods sales 3

Income from governmental subsidies 4 1,500,000.00 1,500,000.00

Investment income 5 316,606,193.39 316,606,193.39

Other income 6 1,851,521.73 1,851,521.73

Total income 7 318,510,075.45 1,102,649,407.86 1,421,159,483.31

II. Expenses

(I) Business activity expenses 8 1,093,480,995.93 1,093,480,995.93

(II) Administrative expenses 9 27,406,955.18 27,406,955.18

(III) Financing expenses 10 15,637,981.23 15,637,981.23

(IV) Other expenses 11 50,330.68 50,330.68

Total expenses 12 1,136,576,263.02 1,136,576,263.02

III. Converting net restricted assets to  
net unrestricted assets

13 1,093,480,995.93 -1,093,480,995.93 -

IV. Changes in net assets (a decreased value in net 
assets is marked with “-”)

14 275,414,808.36 9,168,411.93 284,583,220.29

Cash Flow Statement
Prepared by: CFPA                                                                 Year 2021                                                                        Currency: RMB

Person in charge:Wenkai Zheng                                                                                                                      Person in charge of accounting: Chen Hongtao
Head of accounting organization: Tang Fengmei                                                                                                                            Made By: Wang Zhengyang

Item Line Amount

I. Cash flow from operating activities 1

Cash from donation 2  1,234,689,616.58 

Cash from membership due 3   

Cash from service provision 4  3,825,969.28 

Cash from goods sale 5     

Cash from governmental subsidy 6     

Other cash received in connection with operating activities 7  11,557,305.63 

Sub-total of cash inflows 8  1,250,072,891.49 

Cash for providing donation or funding payments 9  871,191,809.92 

Cash paid to and for employees 10  40,965,297.06 

Cash paid for purchasing goods and accepting labor services 11     

Other cash paid related to operating activities 12  24,914,850.91 

Sub-total of cash outflows 13  937,071,957.89 

Net cash flow from operating activities 14  313,000,933.60 

II. Net cash flow from investing activities 15     

Cash from recovery of investment 16  2,411,968,957.67 

Cash from investment proceeds 17  53,998,046.06 

Cash from disposal of fixed and intangible assets 18  2,000.00 

Other cash received in connection with investing activities 19  1,603,310.23 

Sub-total of cash inflows 20  2,467,572,313.96 

Cash paid for purchase or construction of  
fixed assets and intangible assets

21  221,256,293.61 

Cash paid for external investment 22  2,859,808,719.80 

Other cash paid in connection with investing activities 23     

Sub-total of cash outflows 24  3,081,065,013.41 

Net cash flow from investing activities 25  -613,492,699.45 

III. Cash flow from fundraising activities 26     

Cash from borrowing 27     

Other cash received in connection with fundraising activities 28     

Sub-total of cash inflows 29     

Cash for repayment of borrowing 30    

Cash for paying interest 31     

Other cash paid in connection with fundraising activities 32  6,362,417.35 

Sub-total of cash outflows 33  6,362,417.35 

Net cash flow from fundraising activities 34  -6,362,417.35 

IV. Effect of exchange rate changes on cash 35  1,452,600.86 

V. Net increased value in cash and cash equivalents 36  -305,401,582.34 
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SUNBORN
NETWORK TECHNOLOGY lTD.CO散爆

中航信托股份有限公司
AVIC  TRUST  CO.,LTD.

THE
CHINESE ACADEMY OF

SC
IEN

CE
S

02
该院徽方案是在原院徽基础上，经过修订，保留原院徽的基本结构和形象，

体现历史延续性。

院徽体系的不同院徽组合，可视不同情况使用。

原院徽

修订后的院徽

与郭沫若手书、英文组合形式

院徽体系 AA

CHINESE ACADEMY OF SCIENCES

CHINESE  ACADEMY  OF  SCIENCES

CHINESE ACADEMY OF SCIENCES

CHINESE  ACADEMY  OF  SCIENCES

CHINESE ACADEMY OF SCIENCES

国研财富管理研究院
N A T I O N A L  I N S T I T U T E  O F  W E A L T H  M A N A G E M E N T
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OUR ORGANIZATION
President Zheng Wenkai

Liu WenkuiExecutive Vice
President

Chen Zhigang      Wang Zhenyao      Jin Jinping

Wang Hui            Bai Xiaohong     Liu Xinbing

Vice President

Wang Ming          Wang Lizhi         Wang Xingzui      Wang Zhenyao        Liu Wenkui

Sun Lijun             Li Jian                Li Tao                  Wang Xiangdong     Chen Zhigang

Chen Hongtao     Jin Jinping         Zheng Wenkai     Xiang Lei                  Zhao Guanjun

Yao Jiangtao        Dang Yanbao     Guo Kaitian

Board 
of Trustees

Board of 
Supervisors

Chen Hongtao

Secretariat

Executive 
Director

Tang Fengmei

Wang Jun     Ding Yadong     Wang Peng     Yan Zhitao     Qin WeiDeputy Executive 
Director

CFO

Supportive
Departments

Department of Administrative Affairs                               Human Resources Department

Department of Finance                                                   Monitoring and Research Department

Branding and Communications Department                   Information Technology Department

Resource Development Department                               Rural Revitalization Partnership Department

Public Advocacy Department                                         Mobile Internet Department

Monthly Giving Promotion Department                          International Development Department

Program Development Department
(Running Water Initiative Office)

Child Development Department                                       Health Development Department

Education Development Department                

Disaster Relief and Program Development Department

Bona Villa Program Department                                       Agricultural Development Department

Rural Development Department

Innovation and Social Enterprise Promotion Center

Business 
Departments
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Chengdu Office
Tel: 028 - 6577 1238

Fax: 028 - 6577 1238-697

Address: Floor 12, China CITIC Bank, No. 208, Shijicheng Road,

               High-Tech District, Chengdu, Sichuan

Postal code: 610041

Myanmar Office @Yangon

Nepal Office @Kathmandu

Ethiopia Office @Addis Ababa

Beijing Headquarters
Tel: 010 - 8287 2688

Fax: 010 - 6252 6268

Address: Building 4, Yard 2, Huayuan Road, Haidian District, Beijing

Postal code: 100086

Official website: www.cfrd.org.cn (www.cfpa.org.cn)

Tel: 010 - 8287 2688      010 - 6265 5199

Complaint: 010 - 6255 7336

Account Bank: Bank of China (Beijing Science and 

                        Technology Exhibition Center Branch)

Account: 3233 5602 9109


